STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JULY 1, 2014 8:45 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION MEETING at 8:45 A.M. pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the
purpose of conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employee Association/Operating Engineers Local Union
No. 3

2. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION MEETING pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Employees’ Association AFSME Local Union Comstock Chapter.

3. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for July 1, 2014

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

6. For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 06/20/2014 for $369,507.48 and 6/9/2014
$3,520.75. Accounts Payable date for 6/13/14 for $593,663.71, 6/23/14 $83,181.27 and $3,851.58

1




7. For possible approval the Treasurer Report for June 2014

8. For possible action approval to award bid to purchase of new 911 phone system to AT & T as
sole response to bid.

9. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -
A. WIZE SOLUTIONS, INC.-Contractor/2724 South 3600 West-W Valley City, UT
(Contractor)
B. MURPHY BUILT CONST- 620 Tahoe Street-Reno (Contractor)
C. NETRONIX INTEGRATION, INC.- 2170 Paragon Drive-San Jose, CA (Contractor)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

10. DISCUSSION (No Action -~ No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 14-405 which determines that
Storey County does not approve a boundary line adjustment between Storey County and
Washoe County pursuant to provisions in Senate Bill (SB) 272 Sections 1 and 2(2). For further
clarification, Section 1 of SB 272 pertains to property now situated in Storey County in an area
more commonly referred to as “Sunny Hills”. This action does not involve the area referenced in
Section 1.5 of SB 272 adjacent to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. Boundary line resolutions for
Section 1.5 were approved by both the Storey County and Washoe County Boards of
Commissioners on June 17, 2014 as provided for in Section 2 (3) of SB 272.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 14-406 rescinding Resolution 14-
397 which called for an advisory question to be placed on the November 2014 General Election
ballot relative to a possible boundary line adjustment between Storey County and Washoe
County in an area more commonly referred to as “Sunny Hills”. If Resolution 14-405 is passed,
this action would eliminate any applicability of the results of a General Election advisory
question. If approved, this resolution also provides notice to the clerk the ballot question is
withdrawn.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve Resolution 14-404 honoring Jonathan Dockins of
Jackson, Missouri as a true Virginia City Hero.

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 14-393 Approval of Tax Rate Levy

16. DISCUSSION/POSSINLE ACTION: Approval of modification and extension of Collective
Bargaining Agreement between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office
Employee Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No.3 (Union).

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modifications to Articles 46 (Benefits
Insurance) and 47 (Retirement) of the existing 2013-2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
between Storey County (Employer)and the Storey County Employees’ Association AFSCME
Local union Comstock Chapter (Union).




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

18

19.

20

21

. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Zone Map Amendment 2014-2015. By Comstock Mining,,

and Northern Comstock, LLC in Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada. The applicant requests a
Zone Map Amendment in order to change the zoning of fourteen parcels (Assessor Parcel
Numbers: 002-122-01, 002-122-02, 002-142-01, 002-142-02, 002-142-03, 002-141-16, 002-141-03, 002-
151-01, 002-151-05, 002-151-06, 002-151-02, 002-151-03, 002-151-04 and 002-161-01) from
Commercial-Residential (CR) to Special Planning Review (SPR)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: The applicant requests amendments to existing Special
Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3 to modify and expand applicable land area and allowable uses.
The amendments apply to mining, processing, mine definition, exploration, and ancillary uses on
the subject land in American Flat and Gold Hill. The location of the land subject to this SUP
request is located approximately in Township 16 North, Range 20 East, Section 1 and 12; and
Township 16 North, Range 21 East, Section 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 (MDB&M) as illustrated in Exhibit
A, Project Area Map enclosed herewith.

. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS: None

. CORRESPONDENCE (No Action)

a. Denied agenda request from Dale Beach regarding issue of the NACO attendants.

22. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

23

. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

o Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

¢ Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

e Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,

religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In

accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is

prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,

3




Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that 1 posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before June 26, 2014; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/01/14 Estimate of time required: 60 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Sheriff's Office Employee Association/Operating Engineers Local Union
No. 3.

2. Recommended motion, No action

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and Article 1 of the Bargaining Agreement between the

Employer and the Union, the existing 2011-2014 Agreement is proposed by management to
the Board of Commissioners be modified as tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: (Attached Collective Bargaining Agreement, tentative agreement)

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attomey

8. Reviewed by:
] -Department Head Denartment Name: Commissioner’s Office

“2.al~—"County Manager Other agency review:

K

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
[ N § TR

Agenda Item No,



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/01/14 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Employees’ Association AFSCME Local Union Comstock Chapter.

2. Recommended motion. No action

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborme, Administrative Officer
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968
4, Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288, and Articles 46 and 54 of the Bargaining Agreement
between the Employer and the Union, management proposes to the Board of
Commissioners amendments to Articles 46 (Benefits Insurance) and 47 (Retirement) of the

existing 2013-2016 Agreement that will create conforming conditions with the Affordable
Care Act (ACA) and comply with 2014 bargaining reopener provisions in the Agreement.

5. Supporting materials: To be provided in closed session per NRS 288,

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
—4 _Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
@{'j(camty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
{] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—r—
(R .

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 1, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 06/20/2014 for $369,507.48
and 6/9/2014 $3,520.75. Accounts Payable date for 6/13/14 for $593,663.71,
6/23/14 $83,181.27 and $3,851.58

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _ NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:

[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
—_t

Agenda Item No.



AUYNINITING

S

8

abedq

L

9

S

AHINSTIIL

HITTOELIW0D

YINOISSIWWOD YHENOISSINWWOD NYRRIIVHD

:sdnoxn TTOIAEg

P SISUOTSSTWWOD JO preod Ajunop) Asxo03s 3yl Aq pssoaddy

8% L0S'69¢€ pPISINYSTA TLIOL
S6°STL'ET $I030Npeg O3 IeFsueil I9S) TBIOL
05°T9L‘9 :31Td deQg ATQ UC PIIXDISURIL SUOTIONPaa sviotdumg Te3OL
LY228'022 :31sodag 308aTd @9fordum Telol
85 9T% ‘T :s3oayD sakotdug Tejor
¥9°ZE8'08 FSy)o9y) Ioj3onpaq IRIOL
Y€ 826 °SY f8dLdd I03 I3FSUBAL ISSN TRIOL
Junowy aakeq # paa # aa

/# dwg  /yoayd

¥I/ST/90 :33eq pus-poTiasd $T/02/90 :93eQ Y23YD Ternbsy :adAL Troxied

193sTHay ooy TOTT:0T ¥T/8T/90 :uny

WILSAS TIOJAYd ALNAOD AIJYOLS V0TS0¥d :3day



ATENINITIEL

Z

8

abeg

L

El

S

T

YITANSVILL

I TTIOILANOD

TINOISSIHWHOD

YANQOISSIWHOD NYWRIIVHD

:sdnoxn Troxked

:SISUCTSSTUWO) JO pieog Ajuno) Asx03s syjy Aq psaoaddy

sL°025'¢€ fPesSANUSTd Te3olL
ZE°60T rI030NpaQg 03 JISISUBILL IS TeIOL
00° :97Td dog ITA ue psxasgsuell suoTiIonpad d:3KoTdug Te3oL
00" :31sodsqg 308xTg 9aiordug Te3OL
T€"%SL'T :syosyy 2akotdwg TejolL
LET0¢ge PE0IYD a03IDNPSd TeIOL
SL'9z¢E :Sdldd I03J IDISUBRII I9S[ TRIOL
UNOWY oaked # Paa # aa

¥1/60/90 93 PUS-POTIBI

a938169y Iosyd
WALSAS TTIOJYAYd ALNNOD AHIOLS

¥1/60/90

/# dua  /3}d9YD
1@3'a Ao9yD Tetoads :3dL1 TTOaARg

PEI6ESTT $T/60/90 :umy
¥0T1S0¥d :3day



T

90" L¥T LY

61° 807 L

6% 8

2eLe

097 €€T

0s°ce

00°0%Z°L

00°000°9
0s-122'2
00°08
TYLOL
JOHHD

obeg

00 €LL L
T 88L 9V
26 8BSt
75 8¢
66°68
v0°8¢

9T 9%
CTEPIT
00°SSS
0C 6Tt
2L E0E
£e’ €T
6€° €Y

80 'T¥%
00°86T
LS 99
£0°¢C
66°6T
00°6%
00°09¢
2T 90T
66°ST
¢6°0T
0S°TT

ST S96°¢€
Sy Y
08°S
00°59¢2
oL %2l
6v°8
99°81
99°81

0L 8T
70'0%

6T CV

2s 0T
LL'8

8 €T
0s-zgc
00°00S‘¢€
00°06%°T
00°0sz’'z
00°000'9
0s 122’2
00708
LNNOWY

88269 YI/€1/9
ZEV69 PT/ET/9
ZEV69 YI/ET/9
8LEEY P1/€1/9
8LE6Y YT/ET/9
8LE6Y PT/ET/9
8LE6Y PT/ET/9
8LE6Y YI/€T/9
8LEEY $T/€T/9
SLEEY YT/€T/9
8LEEY PT/ET/9
8LEGY PI/ET/9
8LE6Y PT/ET/9
8LE6Y PT/ET/9
8LE6Y $T/€T/9
8LE6Y YI/€T/9
8LEEY PT/€T/9
8LEEY PL/ET/9
8LEGY PT/€T/9
8LE6Y pT/€1/9
8LEGY $T/€T/9
8LEEI BT/ET/9
8LEEY YI/€1/9
8LEEY vT/€T/9
8LEGY ¥T/€T/9
B8LEGD YT/€T/9
8LEGD YT/€T/9
8LEEY PI/€T/9
8LEGY PT/€T/9
LTE6EY YT/ET/9
¥0¥69 YT/ET/9
70¥69 YI/ET/9
TEE69 YT/€T/9
TEEE9 YL/ET/9
TEE69 YT/€T/9
89E69 PI/€T/9
89£69 PT/E€T/9
89€£69 PT/ET/9
L8TE9 YI/€T/9
9€E69 YI/€T/9
9EE69 PT/ET/9
9EE69 PI/€ET/9
L9E69 PL/E€T/9
80%69 PT/ET/9
59€69 PT/E€T/9
H#SNVIL qI¥A # 0/a
PT/€T/9

TIVM ¥HIATIAIQ FDIAJ0

avoyd TI0L 00T ¥IMEAS

TYEN
SIMVd MIJWYD TLin

TYIN

TITEC IYWZVYH 0D avnd
TII¥d IVWZYH 0D avnd
ONINIVAL

THILOH

THIOH

TYEN

TYAN

TYHN

Bk

Tand

IOYLSOA

HHYLSOd

FHYLSOd

ONINIVIL AITONITI
SI¥Yd ¥ITIVIL STINd
zLd QIVYATIVH JIAAYT
SAYdL HSNOW SL LIS
NOILVILSIDAY ¥ATIVAL/NVA
YATIVIL NOILONQHY THOL
SHITAAQS DNILVEHAO
FOVLSOd

INIYW 9L

SHEITAANS dO INY¥D STINd

Hd¥L 1ond

gI43d
gI3dd

HD
dOHS
dOHS

A¥ANOVT PL LS
AYONOYT ZL LS
A4ANOVT TL IS
SNOILVDILSEANI
LNIWIDONTHNI

LI0ddNs

SINIWADNVHNI dDvd gaM
NOILONTHY TaNG
JYYMLIOS ISNOHAYUIL

LSHL JILVYILSOAdXH

NOILATYOSHA IOIOANI

YHLSIDIY ADIHO

AINNOD AHYOLS

J4EL ' YIWOOH

DIMN TYIDYIWWOD YIQVAYHEd

YoLTH YOI¥AWY 40 JNVH

AANIM ‘SNOVE

OT1 II ALITIHOW I®IV

ONI 0DsT¥

IAVIAYA ‘EIZNIADVW ' NOSITIY

ONI SWHLSAS YIV¥d JIONYAJY
ONI AVOXE/ONIAYID SNINAY
NI SHELSAS ILNAWNJITAOD SOV
IAYES YAANITAD ¥ HIYTIA OHY

JOaNIA

yT/11/90 :
STetEd

SzesL

vZe8L

£C68L

cZesL

1268L

0zZesL

6T68L

8Te6e8L
LT68BL
9TE8L
ST68L
YHERON
JDEHD

ajeq uny
ON 3aoday



4

ZT°92Z¢ 80°99T
T0° 0%
£0°02T

68°SL 68°SL

00°8SS 00°89S

007202 00°20¢

€5°2E€E9'Y 89°806'T
sgr€zL'T

LT LZT 0s° €S
L9 EL

08" %91 08°%¥91

69°5%9 09°8¢
1806
8L 0L
8% TI0T
Z0°¥vE

9675989 2L 99
86" ¥
86°26
9ETLPT

-06°6
66°%Z
85°CT
Lz 92
S¥ €
967 LS
LLEET
TP LT

-00° %S
60"'8BY
86°¢€¢
08°6%T

-6%"

0S° 9% 0s°9¥%
00°2Z8T 00°Z8T
00°99T 00°99T

16695 16699

00" LSY 00" T¥%¥
00°9T

00°000°L 00°000°L

00 €LL L

IYIOL LNOOWY

HDEHD

sbea

8€E69
0Zves
8€€69

L0OV69
06269
69E69

LEEGY
LEEGY

vEE6S
veces

v6c69

EEE69
£EE69
£eE69
£€eEes
£e€69

2EL69
22869
2e€69
cEEES
(AR A
22869
(AR A3
ZEEE9
2ege9
2€E69
(AR A3
2€L69
zgcee9
[AR 23]
TEL69
Te€69
2ege9

S8¢€69
2zee9
TZE69
£0v69

16269
16269

9TE69

#SNTAL

PT/EL/9
$T/€L/9
YT/€1/9

YI/€T/9
YTI/€T/9
YT/€T1/9

YT/€T/9
YT/€T1/9

YI/€T/9
YT/€T/9

YT/ET/9

PI/€T/9
YTI/€T/9
YL/ET/9
YT/€T/9
YI/€1/9

YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
$T/€T/9
$T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
PT/ET/9
YI/€T/9
¥T/€T/9
YT/E€T/9
PT/€T/9
$T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
¥T/€T/9
YT/ET/9

YT/€T/9
$T/€T/9
PT/€T/9
YI/ET/9

PT/€T/9
YI/ET/9

YT/ET/9

a2LYd

PT/€T/9

# 0/4d

HMVTH 08TL-T¥L-SLL
LI LINJILNI av¥dI
a¥dI T0000-T90€9CCLL

JI5INISIA INIWHS INIYD
v1/62/9 - ¥1/2/9
ATI0L LI0ddns

TEZSEId 3 DFd M4
THSIIA ® DIF M4

NVd dXH ‘XZTINd IETAT-MT
L7349 A0 dNAOYD MT

SEITAdNS ELIIDNOD

UMAIH $L-¥ AT
ASYDASSY TAM-PL-T FATL
YOLOENNOD ¥L-d¥ FAII
JIONITOS -89T1950S
ASYD ' XQOE LO¥HI-TTE9SOS

SYEALTIA-AD0LS

SYELTIA dIV AD0LS
FEALIIL TINd -AD0LS HYIA
II0-3D0LS 0OS

LIQHE¥D -08

X3ld -4OHS

ASYD EJId PECvS dLND dS
SYEAIM ¥IND ¥S

SN -ddLYM

INYTO0D ¥L-¥ FIIA
ONILLIA-8L-L HAIA
DNILLIA-8L-1 HIIA
LIQEED O34
YOTIIW-AONIL TINA MdI
LNYTIO0D 89T19S0S
SONILLIA-8L-L JIIA
2ev9s9

JIMIS /JLLEM
6€£-TSE-€00 NAY
6€-TSE-€00 NAY

QISENGSTIA INAWHSINYYD

$10Z ‘v ENAL - 2T AVK

NOILONY LS 9 ISOD ONIACW

NOILAI¥OSHd HOIOANI

YILSIDAY MDHHD
ALNNOD AHJOLS

XHL-WIVYHD

dIHSYEANLYYd ODTTHED
NOHAFTIEL ALNNOD TTIIHDUNHD
ONI ¥00dLNO sdEd

ONI HTITISYO

ONI 0D TIO AITIVA NOSUYD

SENTIONF 'TIYWS NOSIYD

ONI XIW AQYIY NOSYYD

ONI qd0d TIY.LIdVYO

SI¥4¥d OLAY ALID TIVLIAYD
NIWZACEIWI IVIENED NOANYO
T ¥I3A ' YIIAIYD

III TIONVW NHOL ‘NOMXH

TYNOISSEI0Ed 3 SSHANISNH

SIMAT ILIODS ‘I13ddng
4 ATIOW ‘LINng
FOaNHEA

$T/T1/90
STETEd

T¥68L

ovesL
6E68BL
8€68L

LE68BL

9€68L

SE68L

veesl

£E68L

ZE68BL
T€68L
0g68L
6268L

8zZ68L

LZ68L
9Z68L

JTINON

MOEHD
a3eq uny
ON 3xoday



€

£EE"9L8

ET"8CL

8 8L8'T

£€9°TET

vetes

SLESL'®
£8°6%
vZ°sc
00" €vE
75699
082S
80" c¢t
00-ozL's
00" ¥%%C
0002t

0s70LL

€8°T€L’0T

90781

BEETE' 0¥

0T LEE

TYLOL
JDEHD

sbeg

00" 0%
£€e°91¢
00°0¢2s
S6°GLT
8T 'ETS
00°6¢

80°6%0'T
0c 6cC8

ST 16
8E 0%

SET9V
66°S

SLTESL'S
£8°6%
$Z°SZ
00" €¥¢€
$5° 659
08°2S
80°Z€
00°0ZL'S
00°%%2
007021
06" TL

Sz 89
00°T6
00°%0T
SL°Z62
00" €%T

9T°'STE’S
L9°9T¥’S
S0°8T
00°0SZ'T
00°0ST'T
00°000'ST
8€ €IB'CT
02" LEL

LNOOWY

LLEBS
9LEBY
6T769
T9€69
T9¢69
T9€69

£7E69
£vE69

08€69
8T¥%69

Z¥ve6s
Z¥E6s

S55E69
oLT69
T%€69
TT€E69
£Cve9
0%7€69
cLEBY
6LE69
£6269
26269
€LZ69
€LT69
£LT69
€LTe9
€L269
¥2ees

SLT69
95¢€69

90769
7Tte9
vTE69
YIEE9
LZeEYS
26€69

#SNVIL

YT/€ET/9
PT/€ET/9
YI/€T/9
YT/ET/9
PT/€T/9
YT/ET/9

YT/E€T/9
FT/E€ET/9

PT/€T/9
YI/€T/9

PT/ET/9
YL/€T/9

¥T/€T/9
$T/E€T/9
YT/€T/9
PT/€T/9
PT/€T/9
¥T/€T/9
¥I/€T/9
$T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
$T/€T/9
$T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
¥T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
YI/€T/9
PT/€T/9

$T/€T/9
YT/€T/9

YT/E€1/9
YI/ET/9
$I/€T/9
YT/E€ET/9
YT/€T/9
PI/E€T/9

2LYa

YTI/€T/9

SHILITILIN

INEY AV¥ad aNOd

AINNOD d¥N0 INIY QNO4
dANd dWAS

ao¥ ‘1VOoTld‘OWnNd
SIAOQTD

THSHIA & OHI MT
TISHIA 7 DHI-MT

HANYdOdd 2L IS
ANYdOdd Od7Td ONINIVAL

WD JdId4-MONIL JIGWAOTG
STTE-T00d

ADEANT AN NOILONALSNOD Jdd
08 QOOMIDOT -dHLA0D
SYvEds -T00d

HOVLS0d LOTIVE dTdWYS
TYNTA

JOLOEANNOD-7LY HIAIA
HIYWANI /A00d / TIYWIYM
SdITddNS NOILONJHE TANA
$T0Z ‘% ENAL-ZT AWK
$102 ‘% ENACL-ZZ AWK

9 ENAL LSOd €0L IVIDAJS
9 ENAL LS04 dgor

9 ENAL IS0d €00

9 ENNCL LS04 dor

¥TI-Te-S SHSNCOH IS 4
SSC-%T qd0

DE8D ¥TI0C AWH
SHILIAILOY HINOA

dISENGSTA INAWHSINYYD
¥10Z aNAC

$102 INOQC

¥1/0€/9 HONOWHL €T/T/L
XYL SIIYS ALNNOD I¥L
S3ITddns

NOILAI¥OSHEJ IDIOANI

YIALSIODHA ADHHD
AINOOD AHYOLS

T AHIOWIL ‘HI¥HIND

OTT SLNAWNLSIANI 41O

YIDNIVIED

OTT ADYHNHE SUHXTA

dT SYDTIEIIEA

ONI SESIYIYIINI NOSNDUFA
ONTYHINIONE LSHM AAVI

02 S0¥" YHNIYL

SLOAJOYd NOILUDIVAT DNIMA
ADIAYES ONITIVIW HSITONE
MAVA ‘ NOSANOWAE

ONI ‘TESEIA DIWYNAA

ANOL ‘NESOA

ONI A¥ES NOILONJOAd 40¥d
¥ OIAYLDO 'YISHID

OTT TIIR dTI09 ADOLSWOD

(OA) TTDINOWHD MDOLSWOD

ONI ISHEHD AILINOWWOD

AEIN A0 EDIA¥ES NOILDHETTIOD

YFTANSYIILL NOSEYD 40 ALID

JOANEA

yI/11/90
STETEd

T968L

0968L

6968L

8568L

LS68L

9S68L
SS68L
vS68L
£968L
Z568L
T968L
0S68L
6768L
8%68L
Ly68L

9%68L

SvesL

vye8L

£v6e8L

ZvesL

JEENNON

ADIHD
@3ed uny
ON 3xoday



4

00~

6% %601

0g”

00"

0L L6T'T

Iy 1S8'%

06"
0S"PEL’9
4
%9°L09°2C

ST”

L6°8ST'T

00"

oL”

6¢€°

00"

09¢

<6S

007

612

€1T

0T

192

696

LTV

00T

TELOL
MOFHD

sbeg

00"zst

00°s¢€t
00°S¢

67°¥60°T
00585
05" L
00°00¥%
¥8'¥%C
967 06¢
T%"18S
-00"S2T
-6£° LT
00" %ST
cT vLe
99°%zZ0’'T
0%"€S6°E
T0° 788
00" %1
06°6TC
0S"¥EL'SY
C6'ETT

v9-L09’'zeT

18¢69

2869
28¢69

TLE69

S6Z69
56269

£1969

£6£69
£€6E69
€6€69
£6€£69
€6€69
£6£69
68¢€69
z8C69

LIv69
LIVE9
LIY69

0eee9
L9Z69
ZIE6Y
TZ%69

SPE69
Svees

vveEe9
¥7E69
7v€69
vPee9
v¥ees
P¥E69
TrE6e9
vvee9
vvee9
vveEe9

V6269
v6269

£EV69
62¢69

60769
08269

#SNWIL

YI/€T/9

Y1/€1/9
YT/€T/9

YI/€1/9

$T/€T/9
PT/€T/9

YI/€1/9

PT/€T/9
YI/€T/9
PT/ET/9
YT/€T/9
$T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
$T/€T/9

YT/€T/9
YI/€1/9
YT/ET/9

YT/€T/9
YI/€T/9
YT/€1/9
YI/€T/9

YT/€1/9
Y1/€T/9

¥I/€T/9
PT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
PT/€T/9
$T/€T/9
$T/E€T/9
PT/ET/9
YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
PT/E€T/9

YL/€1/9
PT/€1/9

YT/E€T/9
YT/E€T/9

YI/€T/9
YL/€T/9

dLVd

YT/€T/9

SHITAANS SKWA

ddd aNVTIATIM
dIvddy d5avd

TATA M T/T/NMOQ dWNd

$10Z ‘% ENAL-2Z AVK

ONINIVIL TYOILOVL

DI1E FTIAIN‘€¥VE-FL FIII
Odd OVdL 8L-4

N¥d -£0LMd

LISOdEAd FI00 -6tETCoHIIA
LTd9 8L-4

LICEED d0d 40 LNIWAYITE
SYIVdEE ¥LLM

TTXY YINITLHDITEA L00Z

MS dNAOVE WA FINSSVIAY
YAZ IXE ALNVIIYM dEAHES
DNI4dTIHS

$T0Z @NQC / LPTIN
WSI¥NOL XLID VYINIDIIA
STvdS AD0T INIRW

T ¥¥dX IOVIINOD HIISTEdM

SONIY O-F¥Id
ONIY-O-CLTE HITJI

1004 SYHATTIOE B ZIIA
NMAXOONM

SYHILTIL ‘dIND AUNS dA
§3ITddNs DSIW-T00d
1EM0NE ' I¥EXEd -100d
STHMOL dd ‘LIATIOL-T00d
SHATTOA-TO0d

1004 NMOTXOONA
1004 LOIANOD
LIAEED 9 % &

¥10Z ‘v INAL-2Z2 AWK

ST/%T NONYD INIVW NY¥ JDFI
S92-2t00CT WIIJ-SHOVIWI

SHITdNS SKWHE
%102 ‘SZ AWK

NOILATHOSHQ FDIOANT

JALSIDTY NOTHD
ALNAOOD AFIOLS

ONI HOENOSHVT

SNOS 3 SILIND N 1T

3 DNIFWNTd S¥¥Ad ¥ 1

¥ NYILSI¥HD '¥HTHOHIA

HdISor ‘saNOL

O d4dr

OTT HJdN0S TLI
NI LOW OANI NIVLNAOW NOJI
DT ‘SHIVIDOSSY ® STIVHNI
NI NOILVINGVI INIANAdHANT

ONI SHSI¥YdEIINT NOOI

A¥ES TYIMLSNANI DITINYIAAH

AOIAYES LIQHYED LOdIAd JWOH

OHDS QdvVM HLINOA DIUOLSTIH

ONIDVWIOQUDIW L¥ISIA HOIH

NIZHOS Z¥NdH

JOaANAIA

yT/TIT/90
STETEd

LLEBL

9L68L

SLesL

vLE8L

ELEBL

cLesL

TL68L
0L68L
6968L
8968L

L968L

9968L

S968L

v968L

£968L

2968L

YHEINNN

MOFHD
a3eqg uny
ON 3xodsy



S

0S°L80'T
0E°"¥85‘2 0E°¥85'2
8L B0% '€ 00°€8L’T
05°80¢
00°0S
00700T
00°S2T
8Z°Z¥0'T
L0°0S8°% L0"0S8’S
YET60E 8T790%
=%70°68T
L8 TS
8L™ €€
95°¥%5¢
€0°TZ
-00°S¥
-00°S¥
-%0 68T
00°0% 00° 0%
0% 6ST ZS'TTT
88 LY
89°8TL ¥9°LST
8% ZET
Z8° 9L
YE 6L
99°tg
6€°€8
TS €L
vZ Lz
(2
96°€TS'T 96 €TIS'T
S¥°S S¥° S
80 %¥6T'T 08°LL6
82 912
00°00S°T 00°00§°T
00°868'TE 00°000°2
00°868°6C
9€°9C¥% 9€°92%
66°F1T 66 " PTIT
£9°29 £9°2¢
00°2ST
TYLOL LNOOWY
ADEHD
sbeg

86¢€69
8%€£69

TEVES
TeP69
TEDES
TEV69
TEV69
8TE69

6£C69

L7E69
L7E€69
Ly269
L¥E6S
LYE69
LyEeS
L¥Y€69
LYE69
LYE69

96T69

09¢69
20v69

PLEED
vLEES
69269
69269
69269
69269
69269
79¢€69
SZv69
¥8269
6TE6S

71769
Y1¥69

LSE69

8LZ6Y
8LC6S

05E69
67869

62%69

HSNVAL

YI/€T/9
YI/€1/9

YT/€ET/9
PT/ET/9
YI/€1/9
$T/€T/9
YT/€ET/9
PT/ET/9

YT/€T/9

PT/ET/9
YT/ET/9
YI/ET/9
YTI/ET/9
YT/ET/9
YT/ET/9
PT/ET/9
YT/ET/9
PT/ET/S

YI/€T/9

YI/ET/9
PT/ET/O

PT/ET/9
YT/€T/9
PT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
$T/€T/9
$T/E€T/9
$T/€T/9
PT/€T/9
$T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9

YI/€T/9
YT/€T/9

YT/€T/9

YT/ET/Q
PI/ET/9

vT/€1/9
PT/ET/9

YT/€T/9

2LYa

YT1/€1/9

SINIYJIFONII
¥T10C T1I¥dvY

S
SdHA LaN

SH3E
SSESSY NIWAVY IdN0D "ISId
ASYHOUNd dHILYM AVN

AYHLLYE PLTH HIIA

JdOU¥E NI dd ‘IIAE¥D DHLE
SA¥d ZAVIE dLND ¥S
SHAQOTD dOHS

STJIOD '@AVIE ¥HETS HIIA
Fd0T EINODITIS-dOHS

FJ0D
900 -vL-¥
LIQEED O34

Y102 ‘% ENAC-ZZ AVK

SHEITd4dNS ONILNIVA
LNIVd

DAIYELIVYD ANI NYDS HAIT
YAV ¥ SYATOIA SSYID

¥dd¥d 59EdT04 dH
S¥3QI04 ‘SAILON II IS0d

SIETEY.L 3 JADAIT ‘I¥DET
dIJYd ‘DOd SIYL

SLIS ® NOISEJ DILVWIHOS
9TY¥SE NAY

Ood dIod
2d dIoo

ddd ISIAdEOT

JANYE ATNL 40 HLP
13sdnd AInr 40 HLY

TED 3 WIW TOILWIHD

SEITddNs DSIN

NOILAI¥OSHJ HDOIOANI

YILSIOAY MDHHO
ALNNOD AHYOLS

ALHAYS OITHNd IdA3d AIN

SEANOSHY NVWNH IdEA AN

YITTOALAWOD AEN

SANAOCYD ¥ DATHE NIWAY AEN

SI¥Yd OLOY DN

OIVW ‘' AHJINKW

ZIYMAIYH ISNOHANAOW

NI SNOILATOS dDIJA0 OJLIW
YZd¥D YT A SHAIOTENW

d LIvEIEd TIYOON

ONI SEI¥OLYIO0gVYT YW

LEAVOIVIN  ‘ MHHIMOT

DT SINIAE 3T AINOIT
ONI INIWAINOH NTODONIT

ONI HAESOL FIT

NI SEDIA¥ES ENIT FOYNDNV'I
JOANIA

YI/TT/90
STETEd

£E668L

Z668L

1668L

0668L

6868L

8868L

LBEBL

9868L
S868L

v868L

£868L

Z868L

T868L
0868L
6L68L
BLEBL
YIEWON
JADHHD

i @3eq uny
:oN 3jxodsy



9

00°88T

oL"zs

0T"S0S
[(1 R 24

00°20T

00°0SL‘T

00°0LT

6Z°9t¢'T

0Z°L9L'T
TL'6T
00" PIT

00°00T

00°S¢

v€'0T

S8 TOL 6T

00°99T
00°00L°L
0S°L80'T
TYLOL
MOHHD

sbeg

99°S8C
8861

00°88T

ve-z¢c
9L"6S

0T°S0S
0g"¥Ce

0§°Le

00°0s¢t
00° 08¢
00°0S¢
00°0S¢€
00709¢

00°0LT

L8766T
20 ¥s8
10°%8
6€£°86T

oz LoL'z
ZL'6T

00°%TT

00°829°T
96°ST9
00'6¥8'2
29'ST¥
95°6SL'T
9L"BTIS'€E
00"¥oL'Y
00°2TE‘€E
56°8¢8

00°99T

00700L'L

LNOOWY

S0v69
S0769

L6269

BBEES
88E69

€8269
98269

L8EES
L8LE9

£TE69
£TE69
€TE69
€Te69
£1€69

LZY69

TLZ69
TLT6S
TLZES
TLZ69

¥SE69
9Z€69
6L269

98¢€69
ST¥69

0eves

60€69
60€69

80¢€69
80¢€69
80€6S
80¢€69
80¢€69
80€69
80£69
g0€63
80¢€69

96¢£69

€8€69

H#SNYAL

$T/€T/9
YL/€T/9

PI/ET/9

PI/€T/9
¥I/€T/9

YT/€T/9
YI/€1/9

YI/ET/9
YT/€1/9

YT/€T/9
YT/ET/9
YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9
T/€1/9

$T/€T/9

wI/€1/9
vI/€1/9
YT/€1/9
YT/€1/9

YT/€T/9
YI/€T/9
¥TI/€T/9

$T/€T/9
$I/€T/9

$T/€T/9

YI/€T/9
YI/€T/9

PI/€1/9
PI/€1/9
¥T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
$T/€1/9
YT/€1/9
YI/€T/9
YT/€1/9
YT/€T/9

YI/€T/9

YT/€T/9

JLYa

YI/€T/9

d3sdNgsIa INIWHSINIVD
JESINESId INIWHSINIVD

%T0Z ‘% INAL-ZTZT AWYRW

INIVIW 8LQ
INIYW 8LQ

SAYYW LS OANI ONIdd¥W
HDI440 MYETO

NOILUNIDOVA SSHEH
TYDISAHd 100 NYDIOW

OdHd HILIL ¥d IDINIA €E€€T
LI0dHd H7TLIL AN TIIH dT0D
L¥0ddy dTLIL AN TTIH TTIOD
d3d d1LIL 1AJ4LS H "8 €8T
J0ddad dTLIL IHIILS N N 0¥

NYdL NY

NOISSIWWOD ONINNYTIA
SYANOISSIWHOD

IdHd FOIAYES
LNANdOTIATA WWOD

OEAD $T0Z 'II¥dY
JILOATIOD Sddd
AAVIYd AYA TYIHOWHW

INIVH TYLI0d
44 TYLI0d ATHLNOW

dIVOIQEW/WG (HOYYW ON) dHd
dIVOIQEW/Wd %T0Z ANYNNYL

¥T/T/€- %1/80/2
¥1/1/¢€ - ¥1/82/21
Y1/1/€ - ¥1/81/1
¥I/ST/2-%1/%/1
¥1/22/€E\- ¥1/S1/2
¥1/62/€ - ¥T/11/1
p1/62/€- ¥T/TT/T
¥1/62/€- ¥1/T0/2C
v1/62/€ - €1/12/21

LIWNIdd q0o0d

NOILDNOHEd TdNJg

NOILAT¥DSHJ FDIOANI

YALSIDEE AOFHD
ALNOOD AHAOLS

ONI SHDIA¥HAS HTIOVNNIA

d OTIONY ‘INIVLE]

d ® SIAVY4 MONdL LTId¥HLEd
S NHOL ‘HSIYIYd

271 ‘10dEd ¥Ivd HLISJAL0

HLNZD HLIIYEH TYNOILVdANDD0

00 FILIL YOVAIN NIHAHILION

YLD TYNOILYNIIINI AHEN "ON

ONI VINJOJITYD 40 THILXIN
dASY AINNOD fIvdNd VAYAEN
ONI HDIA¥ES TVOIT VAYAHN

OTT SNHOLD ¥YAYAIN

(ONY} ALT JNTH YAYAAN

YTANSYHIIL AFN

dELNED TUYNOIDAY TYdNd AIN

ALI¥NDES INHWAOTAWH AIN
HLIVEH 40 AIQ AEN
AYLSEI0d 40 AIQ AEN
JOANIA

¥1/11/90
STETdd

TT06L

0TO6L

6006L
8006L

L006L

9006L

S006L

v006L

£006L
2006L
T006L

0006L

6668L

8668L

Lee8L

9668L
S668L
ve68L
HIEWNON
ADEHD

i @3®d uny
iON 3x0day



L

LEZLOLET

zLszo’‘e

00°9T

00°SLT
0S"TLT

00°0ST

LE"S69

05 0T
L9 L
68°6LT
ST €0T
00" ELE
68 VL
00°00T'2
00°000'T

05°9LS

0s°C%

so'ssL'ze

LS TSY

€P°€%3°T

00" 5L

$Z°STT'T

¥S°S0¢€
IYLOL
MDEHD

abed

00°cT
00" ¥
LET9S0'LET

zL ge0’e

05" TLT

00°00T
00°0%

LL*Y0T
g€ T1s
ZZ 6L
05°0T
L9 L
68°6LT
ST €02
00°€LE
68" %L
00°00T°2C
00°000°T

00°0%%
0§°9¢T

05°¢¥

00°00S‘e
S0°S8¢

88°12ZE
69°6CT

6% €T
v6°629°C

00°9L
0¥ 089
8 vEY

LINOOWY

10€69
T0€69
€£TE69
99¢683

66€69
66€69

0TE69
00€E69

LEEEY
LEE6Y

2Cv69
2Zv69
2Zves
66269
02e69
v9269
T6E69
z9ot69
€5€69
06€69

vLZ69

8C¥%69
8C¥%69

86269

SZTE69
18269

TS¢69
15¢69

68269
682689

S9¢69
T0%69
T0%69

#SNVIL

PT/€T/9
YT/ET/9
YT/€1/9
YT/€T/9

YI/€T/9
YT/ET/9

PT/ET/9
YT/€T/9

YT/ET/9
BT/€T/9

YI/ET/9
PT/ET/9
YT/€1/9
YI/€T/9
YI/ET/9
YT/ET/9
YI/ET/9
YT/ET/9
YI/ET/9
YI/ET/9
YI/ET/9

YI/€1/9
YI/€1/9

YI/E1/9

YI/€1/9
P1/€1/9

YT/€T/9
YT/€T/9

YI/€T/9
¥I/€T/9

YI/E€T/9

YI/E1/9

vI/€1/9
TLYA

YI/ET/9

# 0/d

$T0Z ‘% INNL-ZZ AWK
TIATIOHE XYL ALIAJOdUd
140ddNs AYN

HOOX
STYAVH

SYAAIILS 00T2
$102 ‘v ENOQL-TT AVW

sond
sond

0Z 08 SLHOIT dIS HO

6T Od SIHOIT ¥lS oA
SLHOIT ¥LS

$10Z ‘% ENAL-ZT AWM
9T-9T€-£00 NdAY

10d3a TIIH aI0d
SEITddNS SWI

INIVA FNnr

\SNIAC ¥Od SHNTd -TIWL
ONINIVAL ZTZ-S

TYNIJ TTI¥AOVAE SANYTHOIH

LOW DWH-LS98L¥8SLL IDOY
T0-9L9CZND WYHLLOTA SID

$102 ‘% ANAL -Z2 AVN

WYED0dd ¥IAEW TYIDOS
SAYAIYA MOVASYT4

IVdId ' TI¥D FDIAYES -ZTL-IM
dYIL -92t8Y OS

T 'q¥vY0d
L '¥0I¥dY

¥10Z ‘9T IdES-LZ NAL
JISEENGSIA LNANHS INIYD
JES¥NESIA INAWHS INJYO

NOILATIOSHd HOIOANI

JILSIODIY ADEHD
ALNOOD AHAOLS

(OA) JIINAD JOINIS 0D IS

IOTAELSIA TOOHDS 0D IS

ONI SHOIA¥ES ALITILN €IS

FIINID DN¥d ® dOCd SHLIWS
VEa DOTT SITILSAONI XOITS

Yd3d TYNOILUYN HLVLS JIATIS

ONI TOALNOD LSHd YIIHIS

0D ¥IMOd DIJIOVd VIIEIS
NITIV NYI¥€E ‘JYOHS

T ADNYN ‘SNYHIZNHDS

ONI SHEDIA¥ES "¥H0TID OdS
ONI ODddnyd

NI ONIJVOSANYT NIFYD ONIA
SYEATYEE LINDYUID ONHI

L HAHASOL ‘IAYVYHNIZN

AAVH ‘ NYDHHE

(¥2) DNI 0D NYDIOW AYY

W YIANVS ‘qu0davd

ONI SHIDIALWILS vy

0D ¥HgdNy 3 JYIL TTdddINd

S INIWHIILIY XTdWI DITENd

ONI SEOIAZA NOILDILOAA

I 0D FONUNIA TYNOISSTA0EA
YOANIA

$T/TT/90
SsTETad

vEO6L

£E06L

ZE06L

1e06L
0£06L

6206L

8206L

LZO6L
9zZo6L
STo6L
vZ06L
€206L
TT06L
TZ06L
0Z06L

6T06L

8T06L

LTO6L

9T06L

STO6L

PT06L

€T06L

CT06L

ATTWON
JADHHD

93eq uny

ON 3xodsy



8

6% LTIE'CT

00°82c

TS 1TV '8

00" %T

7v°88C

€b 8€6°T

00°zse

007LEE’T

00°08Ss

09°060'T

0S"TLT'T

0€°05€‘2T

€0°29L°T

8T ¥6T

80 8%6‘TT

TYLOL
ADTHD

abegq

6% LTE'ZT

00 %TT
00°%TT

ZS"1Zh ‘8
00" 7T

S6°¢ST
6% ¥ET

0% 287
€0°9S%'T

00°2SseT

00°2€T
00°S0Z°T

00°0SS
09°060°T

08" Tt
00°0T0‘T
0070¢tT

0€'0sSE’CT

€T 8T
¥Z TI0T
LT 08%
0T"S6T
06089
YL TS
Ly 26
0% 6ET
LY C6
69766
69°66
69°66
€9°59CT
Ly 26

00°SGLT
8T°6T
ST'TP0'T
EE EEB'0T
09" €L

LNOOWY

£9¢69 YTI/€T/9

v8€69  ¥T/€T/9 440 0¥ WOOHISHA
¥8€69  ¥T/€T/9 430 dO¥d WOOYLSHY
0LZ63  ¥I/ET/9 N¥4 ¥H ONY SIHOIT
v0€69  TI/ET/9 ¥T0Z ‘% ENOL-2Z AVR
0LE69  ¥T/€T/9 ¥II- A¥Ed SOLT
0LE69  FT/€T/9 S/M- N¥Ed SOLT
S6€69  TI/ET/9 SHITdANS NOIIONQITA 1IN
56€69  ¥T/€T/9 SAITIANS NOILONAAY Tand
LOE6S  ¥I/ET/9 JdOHS I1JID ¥0d ENIM
€0€69  ¥T/€1/9

€£0€69  FI/ET/9 %102 ‘% ENAL-2Z KWW
0T¥69  PT/€T/9 sEoavd
¥Z¥69  BT/€T/9 s

20tE69 Y1/€1/¢
z0€69 YI/€1/9
20E69 YT/€T/9 $I0Z ‘v INAL-ZZ AWK

ZLT6S YI/€1/9 aNYT NMOLASNOT TL¥Z

99269 PI/€T/9
69¢69 YI/€T/9
69€69 YT/€T/9
69¢€69 YI/€1/9
69¢€69 YI/€T/9
69¢69 YI/€T/9
69¢69 YI/€T/9
69€69 PT/E€T/9
69€69 AYAAYE]
69¢69 Y1/ET/9
69€£69 YI/€T/9
69€69 YI/€1/9
69€69 PL/€1/9
69€69 YT/€T/9
69E69 YT/€1/9
69€69 PT/€T/9
99269 YTI/€1/9
69€69 YI/€T/9

£€9269 Y1/€1/9 HSNIDIT ¥ONOIT/SSAINISNE
92v69 ¥T/€1/9

00%69 YT/€1/9 aooa
BSE69 YL/€T/9 140d4dns

00769 YT/€T/9
#SNVIL LVa # 0/d NOILAI¥DSHd IDIOANI

YT/€T/9 WALSIDIA ADIHD
ALNOOD AHYOLS

OLoA

INENdOTIATA TRINT ¥ASN

N 40 SEDIA¥YIS FLIS JILINA
ONI ¥ds TYOIdLOATH JdLINO

ONT SHYNINIA-IVL

INIWIAQIAWI TYIIANID I¥L

ONI'ZX1ddns JILSNOD NYIIL

D MDIQ ‘DNITISSLIL

SA0dMOD ENOLSHWOIL HFHL
OT1 SLIVTOGHWAS

ILIT ® ONILIOJEY IANIHSNOS

SHSIYdYAINT JAVdd NOS

ANVAWOD JTLIIL LIYMIALS

WALSAS dYdIYM OD IS

ddI¥EHS 0D IS

JOANIA

¥1/TT/90
STeTed

6706L

8¥06L

LYO6L
9v06L

s¥o6L

vvoeL

£EV06L

TvoeL

Tv06L
0v06L

6€06L

8E06L

LEOBL

9€06L

SE06L

TTIHON
ADFHO

a3eqg uny

oN 3xoday



€

TL €99°¢€6S
00°5z8’z
00°0S%'T

8L ¥SC

00°96¢€

LS TIZS'ET
00°5LS

85°ZLY'T
00°999°1
LL 8ZE'Y

00" %LL'T

00°0zZL'€E

00°0%C

00"00¢C

TYIOL
ADHHD

abed

TYLOL SMOdHD
00°sz9‘2
00°0S%'T

6L°06
66"€£9T

00°0Z
00°S¥T
00°T€Z
LS TZTS €T
00°5L9
85°2ZL9‘T
00°99%'T
LL"8TE'Y
00°029°'T
00708
00°%0T
00" ¥¥T
00°LZ8'T
00°6%L T

00°0ST
00°06

007002

LNOOWY

S8Z69
8CE69

SLEES
SLEEY

€LEES
£LEES
£LEE9
25¢e68
STE69
PEVE9
SEE69
ZIv69
90¢t69
90€69
90¢t69
S0g69
S0€69
S0€69

89269
89269

91769

#SNVIL

YTI/€T/9
YI/€T/9

YI/ET/9
YI/€1/9

YT/€T/9
PI/€T/9
¥T/€T/9
PT/E€T/9
$T/€T/9
YT/€T/9
$T/E€T/9
¥T/€T/9
YI/ET/9
YT/ET/9
¥T/ET/9
PT/ET/9
YI/€T/9
PT/€T/9

YI/€T/9
PT/ET/9

YT/€T/9
HIVA

PL/€1/9

# 0/d

dna Tvd ¥0LSdd dWKW HD
AV DNIWVII

AIVdTd TYNIAEN-TO00d
39nL AT04 ‘XNTA-UIND ¥S DA

WI0JITOD

NOEIYD HY0 'WIOAITOD ‘ATY
SAITOS ‘' SNOoENDY ‘TYOEd ‘ 20
JIYddyd TIYM HLION HO
ENIVH OILENID

INED ¥OINAS MT -STIVAW AV

SHOIAYNES ISIAEdOT

SALVWNI/Q00I

$102 ‘% IENNL-ZZ AYKH

¥I0Z ‘v ENAL-ZTT AV

S.:0Ad oA ST

ANHdILS OZYYWIA INIA

NOILdI¥DSHEI IDIOANI

YALSIOAT ADHHD
ALNOOD AHYOLS

NIIYA ‘¥030Z

YHLITY KIVH ' TIVAIOM

0D ATddNS VAVAIN NIALSIM

gY7T TYINHWNOIIANT NATLSEAM
J dYVYHOIN ‘HSOOHTAM
YAVAEN ‘AINNOD HOHSYM
A¥ES YOINES ALNNOD FOHSWYM
SELYIDOSSY ¥ JHATYM

IOHYNOD A0 IdIA ILYIS ¥M

ONI SYN0L ALID VINIDVIA

0D ¥¥ FIIONYL ¥ VINIDIIA

ALIDOTIA OHATA

FOANIA

$T/TT/90
STETdd

T906L

0906L

6506L

8906L
LS06L
9506L
SS06L
¥soe6L

£506L

csa06L

Ts06L

0S06L

AITGANN
ADHEHD

S3Beg UNny

ON 3xo0dayg



YINCISSINWWOD

$T/€1/9 FIVA MDIHD TL €99°€6S TYLOL SADTHO

NOILVZIJOHLAY ANV MITIAHY 40 LNIWIDAHTMONADY



P10Z INOL XIVWING TT04-AYM NOILOETH 00°0%1 T020T vT02Z

¥T/LT/9 07" 88T HY¥OEEd ‘HHOOW 1806L

#T0Z ENAP XAYVHING YHAVET-¥M NOILOFTH 0% 88T 00Z0T vI0C
: PT/LT/9 09 €LT ITYD ' THOOW 0806L

$T0Z ENAC AYYWINA T704-¥IM NOILIOTTE 09°€LT 66TOT ¥102
¥I/LT/9 85°2ST T VEHIVNNY ‘NON HHA-FIOOW 6LO6L

$T0Z ENQC ANYNING TIOZ-¥AM NOIIDITH 85°2ST 86TOT $102
4 $T/LT/9 00 Of€ ‘Y FETINEW EETIIN 8L06L

$T0Z ENOL XMVATNE ¥EAVET-WIM NOILOETI 00°0€E L6TOT ¥102
$T/LT/9 00°02T 5 VANZ¥E ‘EET LLO6L

¥T0Z ENACL XUVHING TTOd-WIM NOIIDETE 00°02T 96T0T ¥102
. YI/LT/9 0% 28T T VIOVT ‘EI0MEN 9L06L

$102 ENAL ANVWINd ¥EAVET-WMIM NOIIOETH 0%° 28T S6TOT ¥102
YI/LT/9 0S°LZT NVYSNS ‘SINOL SLO6L

770z ENOD ANYWINA TI0d-TIM NOIIOITE 0S'LZT %6707 ¥102
¥T/LT/9 00°0%T ANIVHEOT ‘NNYWSHNZH ¥LO6L

%10z ENAD ANVAIN  TI0d-¥iM NOILDETE 00°0%T £6T0T ¥T0Z

' ¥T/LT/9 0Z°L6E g dIAYA ‘' INYH £LO6L

$T0Z ENAL AYYAING JIAVET-WIM NOILOITH 02" L6E 2610T $102
$I/LT/9 00°0ST TV * TTCIERYD ZLO6L

7102 ANOL AYYWINA TIOE-MIM NOILDITH 00°0ST T6TOT ¥102
YI/LT/9 00°ST¥® NATHSY ‘JEHOVTIVO TLO6L

%702 ENAL AYYWINA TIOd-MAM NOTIDETE 00°ST% 06T0T ¥102
$I/LT/9 00°8L . ITYNEQ ‘SONDId 0LO6L

$T0Z ENAD ANYWINA JEAVET-WIM NOILDITE 00°8L 68T0T vT0Z
$T/LT/9 007 0%T NO¥YHS ‘NOXIQ 6906L

$T0Z ENAD A¥YWINA TIO4-¥AM NOIIDHTE 00" 0%T 88T0T $102
) vT/LT/9 0% OLT ALIODS/NATINVIR ‘JOTSNYHD 8906L

$T0Z ENAL ANYNINE NIQUIT-UAM NOILOITH 0% 0LT 98101 ¥10Z
¥T/LT/9 0Z°69T ATIEN ' TTZMNMONE L906L

$10Z ENAC AYVWING WHAVET-EIM NOILOITE 02'691 S8T0T ¥102
PT/LT/S 00°0%T NNV HLAEVZITE 'A¥d 9906L

$T0Z ENAD A¥YWING TIOd-¥NM NOILDITH 00°0%T L8TOT ¥T0€
¥I/LT/9 00°SPT YATVIEINSE ' SYOENIA £906L

$T0Z ENAL AVYNING TI0d-¥AM NOILDETE 00°S%T ¥8T0T ¥102
PT/LT/S 00°0% ADAOC ‘SSEH z906L

7102 ENOP ANVWINd TTOd-EIM NOIIDEIH 00°0% €810T 7102

NOILAT¥DSEA #EOIOANI  =IVA - 1TYIOL INNOWY "HNYN MOANHA #Q¥ODITW UVIX  WAGWAN

MDEHD  NOTHD TYOSId MOTHD
YALSTOAY SAOEHD QHAAL $T/LT/90 : ®3BQ UN

T obeg ALNNOD ATVOLS 06€TEJ :ON 33X

e



PI0C ENOL XATVWI¥A

¥T0Z ANAL AIVWINA

7102 IANOL ZUVWI¥N

NOILAIVOSEA

abea

FIAVAT-EAM NOILOHTH

TI0d-¥AM NOILOHTH

- TI0-WAM NOIIOHTH

#EDIOANI

85°158'¢€

YT/LT/9 0T IST

YT/LT/9 0S°CTET

YI/LT/9 09°89T

$1/LT/9 00°0F%T

aLva TYIOL

ADFHD  MOEHO
YIALSIDEY SADIHD ad
ALNNOD AFYOLS

TYLO0L SMDOEHD QEJXL

0Z°1ST

05°2¢tT

09°89T

LNOOWY

dAlL

HSINZQ ‘ENINOLDIA-YIMOVHL

VSHYHHL ‘VIIZIZNVYA

YHLIYW ‘NIIID0

NOAT YANOW ‘TJOOW

FWYN JOANIA

7020T v102
€020T ¥102
2020T vT0Z

#QIOOHY  UYHX

AYDISTA NADTHO

yT/LT/90 *

ajeqg un

06€1dd "oz\wwmm\

-

S806L

»806L

€£806L

2806L

YIIWON \\\v““\
WA\\\




LT 'T8T €8 IYLOL SYDFHD QHJAL

¥T/€2/9 LT TLY'SL (X1) YOIYENY J0 ANVE 0L806L
TYNId ALNNOD ATEOLS S9Z-1886S-9C AJ0AYd €7 128 EL 88€0T ¥102
TYNIJ AINDOD AEMOLS S92-18865-92 JI0AVd ¥8'6%8°T 88€0T ¥102
¥1/€2/9 00°00S’L 00 FTLIL YAVAEN NYEHLION 8806L
DA HATE YOIMAWY IO NNVYE NOINAQ H 09T LIS0d3d 00°00S‘L €6€0T v102
¥1/€2/9 00°0T OLIW TYIDYAWWOD YIQVANEd 9806L
dJ0AYd NYOT ¥04 3Fd  T0S6T¥0-10 ¥T/L2/9 00°0T 98€0T ¥102
NOILAI¥DSIA $EOTOANI ~ 31Vd  TYIOL INNOWY T EWVN JOANEA #QNODHY AVEA UATWAN
: MOEHO  MOEHD TYOSIA MDTHD
YILSIHIY SUOTHD QIAAL ¥1/€2/90 : @3e@ uny
1 abeg AINOQOD XTIOLS 06€Tdd ‘ON Axoday

\\\\\



YANOISSTWINOD

&1 ATINSYIUL

aL¥da NOILVZIVOHINY ONV MAIATY A0 INIWIOATTMONADY



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 1, 2014 Estimate of time required: 2 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [| Public hearing required [ ]

il

2.

. Title: For possible approval the Treasurer Report for June 2014
Recommended motion: Approve report as submitted.
. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969
. Staff summary: Report will be available July 1, 2014
. Supporting materials:
. Fiscal impact: N/A
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
. Legal review required: N/A
District Attorney
. Reviegwed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer
County Manager Other agency review:
. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: O7 /Oj, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda| ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Award bid to purchase a new 911 phone system to AT&T as sole response to bid.

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve as part of the Consent Agenda unless further discussion is
requested. If requested, move to approve the sole bid from AT&T and to approve funding of
$186,666.50 to complete the project of upgrading a new fully functional 911 phone system that meets all
federal standards.

3. Prepared by: Dave Ballard

Department: Storey County Communications Center Telephone: 847-0930

4. Staff summary: See page 2

5. Supporting materials:
o Letter from Mr. Kent Ames explaining what the project will do to prepare the county for
next generation 911.
e Executive summary of the project provided by AT&T
¢ Quote Summary broken down by line item of each item included in the project.

6. Fiscal impact: $186, 666.50
Funds Available: Yes Fund: Capital Projects % Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Performed at bid publication District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
//)/92444«/ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

~»2ai~County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
e

Agenda Item No.



Staff summary (continued):

Within the last year, we have been advised that our current 911 phone system is considered obsolete and will no
longer be supported by AT&T. Storey County utilizes Basic 911 at this time. We are looking for an up to date
system that will be ready for E911 and NG911. The current system was purchased shortly after September 11,
2001 when the federal government provided funding through grants to upgrade local government infrastructure.
In the last couple of years, it has begun to show its age and equipment is beginning to fail quite often.

Since the time of purchase, technology has allowed us to make tremendous strides in the way we as a society
communicate. Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPS) throughout the United States are finding that more and
more people text and use their cellular phones than those that use the traditional landline. In the United States, it
is estimated that 70-80 % of 911 calls are made from cell phones. There are few PSAPS within the US that are
fully capable of receiving text message 911 calls. During the last two months over 17 million text messages
were used to call 911. Our current system is not designed to receive text or video messages and has limited
capabilities of answering cellular 911 calls. It is not designed, nor is it capable of retrieving or accepting the
caller’s data. Meaning if a 911 call comes from a traditional landline, the Communications Specialist is
provided with an address and name of the resident. If a 911call is made from a cellular phone, it comes in on a
business line and the only information provided is the cellular company and the cell tower the call is coming
from. It is important to understand the Communications Specialist is forced to ask the caller questions to
determine where that caller is, the additional questioning can delay the response, which in an emergency can be
catastrophic. The new system will provide the Communications Center with GPS coordinates of the caller’s
location, making emergency responses much quicker.

The new phone system is a turn-key fully hosted Next Generation 911 system, one that incorporates all of the
existing i3 (NENA) technical requirements and standards and it allows for the implementation of all i3 based
components as standards are released and systems and services become commercially available. Adherence to
the i3 standards is a general requirement. The Automated Number and Automated Location Indexing
(ANI/ALI) controller will be Phase I and II compatible per FCC requirements. With the new system, Storey
County will be equipped with a system that is fully NG9-1-1, which is built for future expansion as the county
grows. The new system is compatible with the systems that other agencies and cooperators use, leaning towards
continuity in our region. Currently when our system crashes it can take up to 45 minutes before AT&T can
manually switch our lines to an alternate site. With the new system, it will happen instantaneously, making it
seamless.

Several discussions have occurred between County Manager Pat Whitten and Comptroller Hugh Gallagher
since we were advised of the status of our current system. One of the topics discussed was funding of this
project. Cherie Nevin was contacted to assist in finding funds to help alleviate the costs. Cherie was able to
obtain a $30,000 grant to be used towards this project. It is important to know our current maintenance contract
is approximately 17,000.00 per year. The new system is much more cost efficient to maintain with a cost of
only $28,000.00 for 5 years of service.

In summary, we are at a point where we have to take the necessary measures to ensure that we are able to
continue to provide 911 services to residents and visitors of Storey County. If funding for this project is
approved, it will start almost immediately and have an approximate 120 day turn around.



—) tat 645 E. Plumb Lane Office; 775-688-5199
-— d Reno, NV 89502 Cell: 775-762-5116
B4 JUN 18 PH 3: 308

June 18,2014 BY @m

The Storey County Clerk and Treasurer’s Office
Attention: RFP Coordinator Dave Ballard
Storey County Court House

P.O. Drawer D

Virginia City, NV. 89440

Dear Mr. Ballard

The County of Storey (County) provides high-quality centralized services, specialized support,
and innovative solutions to its community. To continue to serve your community more
effectively, you need the best communication services and an industry-leading solution, all at a

competitive price.

We have examined your operational needs and your current communication network. We
propose a solution including Next Generation E911 CPE. Our solution will

o Improve operational efficiency with a cost-effective, reliable network solution

e Simplify network management and administration

e Provide ongoing maintenance

e Prepare you for future advances in business technology

AT&T wants to provide you a real solution to meet your economic challenges and prepare you
for tomorrow’s opportunities. We will follow up shortly to answer any questions you may have
after you have evaluated our proposal.

Sincerely,

Kent Ames
Public Safety Account Manager



County of Storey 911 Telecommunications Equipment Project

Executive Summary

To provide quality public service, government agencies must improve efficiencies,
'upgrade to the latest technologies, and find ways to satisfy the changing needs of its
communities. Therefore, the County of Storey (County) is looking at new ways to realign
old practices with evolving technologies. This process requires rethinking traditional
business processes as well as identifying and integrating new organizational and
operational models.

Currently, the County is using a basic 9-1-1 system for Storey County for its operations
that was installed approximately ten years ago. As your current system is outdated, you
are facing challenges in finding more efficient ways to meet the growing communication
needs of your citizens. Hence, you are looking for a qualified vendor to replace your
system with the Next Generation 9-1-1 system that will meet your current and future

requirements.

AT&T can help you strengthen and extend your infrastructure and provide the expertise
to move your company to the next generation of technology in a cost-effective manner.
We offer reliable, flexible, high-quality, and secure global communication services—all

from one provider.

Objectives

The County must have an infrastructure in place that will support operations and future
business objectives effectively. You want a supplier that can help you redefine your value
in your industry by building a network platform to support the applications that are
imperative to achieving your business objectives:

o o Remove costs from areas of the business not related to your core
competencies

o o Improve the performance of your Network Services

o o Increase the productivity and efficiency of your staff

o o Enhance the capabilities of the services that you provide to your customers

o Increase your operational efficiency

We understand your business challenges and the technologies that underpin your
business. In our RFP response, we provide specific details about each of the services
needed to support the County’s network. Our solution includes AT&T services that can

June 18, 2014 Page 1 .
ATA&T Proprletary: The information contained herein is for use by \ . at &t
authorized persons only and is not for general distribution. Y



Coun ty of S torey 911 Telecommunications Equipment Project

enable you to upgrade your technology and gain additional efficiencies. At AT&T, our
business is helping our customers streamline their communications processes.

Solution

Our solution for the County is a good value and a smart investment. In addition, we’ve
designed the solution to provide opportunities for you to easily add other services when

you’re ready.

Our solution is built on a global networking and IP transformation strategy. We have
included following details about our solution.

Next Generation E911 CPE

Technological innovations drive the need to provide voice and data capabilities over a
cost efficient integrated network rather than more expensive dual networks. These
developments have generated considerable interest in Voice over Internet Protocol
(VoIP) within the E9-1-1 community both as a source of E9-1-1 calls and as an internal
technology for Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPs). Additionally PSAPs have
become increasingly interested in having advanced products that enable them to perform
their jobs better, faster and while lowering their operational costs. They clearly see the
advantages of using IP enabled devices for traditional call delivery to the PSAP and
enhanced call handling call delivery to the PSAP.

AT&T is the predominant CPE provider in our foot print and provides a majority of the
Public Safety Answering Points (PSAPS) with answering equipment. AT&T purchases
products for this market segment from a number of CPE vendors. Next Generation 911
CPE (NG9-1-1) deployment in the AT&T foot print will help meet the critical needs of

this customer base.

CAMA based E9-1-1 calls are received at the PSAP doorstep and converted to a VoIP
call by the equipment that is part of NG9-1-1 offering. Once converted to VoIP, the call
can be transmitted via a LAN or WAN (Wire line or Wireless) to any IP enabled device.

NG 9-1-1 is based on the use of the non-proprietary Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) for
the delivery of voice services, reflecting AT&T commitment to developing solutions that
provide the most flexible offering from a technical and cost effective standpoint. The
digital controller addresses customers' demands for a scalable solution that allows them
to move easily and efficiently onto a single physical network by integrating data, voice,
and future video/wireless traffic while at the same time benefiting from next generation

PBX services

June 18, 2014 Page 2 |
AT&T Proprietary: The Information contained hereln Is for use by @ at &t
authorlzed persons only and Is not for general distribution. \. 7



County of Storey 911 Telecommunications Equipment Project

Advantages of AT&T

AT&T is a global communications provider with the infrastructure, global breadth,
financial resources, and management record necessary to maintain stable, long-term
relationships with global businesses. Our experience in global network services
demonstrates our eapability to provide the people, investment, and technology necessary
to manage County’s complex infrastructure.

We put it all together for County —we can build it, test it, secure it, and manage it. The
result is a complete solution, and you’ll benefit from its convenience, simplicity, and cost

savings.

Personalized Support

Because we understand the importance of personalized service, we give you an account
team of specialists to design and implement your new solution. You’ll receive ongoing,
coordinated support from your account team for all of your AT&T services.

AT&T’s Team for County

Name Title Phone Number Email
Kent Ames Public Safety Account Mgr. | (530) 400-1987 kentames@att.com
Bob Kezerian Project Manager (925) 831-4526 robert.kezerian@att.com
Kevin Knight Field Services Supervisor (775) 333-2444 kevin.knight@att.com
Tina Petersen Account Manager (775) 688-5199 tinap@att.com

We look forward to working with you to help you reach your goals.

June 18, 2014 Page 3 |
ATA&T Proprletary: The information contained herein Is for use by N . at &t
authorized persons only and Is not for general distribution. :



Quote Summary

a%t &,; DATE  6/18/2014 Storey County Nevada
VESTA 4 ® CALL HANDLING w AURORA ®
Account Manager Kent Ames
Phone  (530) 621-6986 2 Position VESTA 4 ®
Email  KentAmes@att.com Tax Rate 0.000%
2 Position Vesta 911 system Solution $106,902.27
1 Desktop Phone with ALl Display
Aurora MIS Reporting Package

Tax $0.00
Services $44,068.70
Subtotal $140,636.30
5 Years Parts and Labor Maintenance $35,695.54
SYSTEM TOTAL $186,666.50

This Quote Valid until

6/6/2014




Customer Information
Customer:
Contact:
Phone:
Fax:
E-Mail:

Storey County
Dave Ballard
(775) 847-1210

dba lard@storeycounty.org

Products: Cassidian VESTA 4 ® CALL HANDLING
AURORA ®MIS SYSTEM

Date 6/18/2014

AT&T Contact Information

Application Sales Executive Kent Ames Sales Consultant Robert Russo
=) Phone: (530) 400-1987 Phone: (951) 369-2282
&= Fax: (530) 621-6987 Fax:
atat E-Mail: ka3189@3ﬂ.com E-Mail: rr1713@att.com

Qty. Part No.

2 870899-00104.2
2 873099-03002
1 SA-000-00SL-C

1 04000-01584
1 04000-01010

2 873090-11202

03800-03040
03800-03045
809800-00200
809800-17101

'S
Sronn

1 03800-03040
1 03800-03041

1 853031-MLSVRSG-1
04000-68009

2 PS-0SQ-VSSL
2 §S-0SQ-VSSL-5Y

61000-409603SFF
65000-47001
65000-00163

SN

63000-221681
F2E4142B10
DVIDSMM10
04000-01005
853030-00302
853004-00401
809800-35109
809800-35108
870890-07501
GET MINICOM2-KIT
64007-50016
SOK7XAU

NNMNN2RNNNNOMNDNDNDNDND

873099-00502
809800-35114

NN

2 873099-00802

Description

Cassidlan Communications VESTA 4 System
VESTA 4 R2 LIC AND MEDIA

R4 CAD INTF LIC

GEO-DIV/MULTI-SITE CFG FEE

BLKBX TL158A-R4 DATACAST
CBL DB25M/DB25M 10FT

ESlnet Interface Module (EIM)

R4 LIC EIM I3 MOD

Note: EIM support not is not applicable to i3
ESinets (Network TBD)

FIREWALL MODEM 60D

WAR FIREWALL 60D 5YR

CFG NTWK DEVICE

FIELD ENG-PRIMARY

Remote Maintenance Firewall
Cisco ASA Firewall
ONSITE 24X7X4 ASA5505-BUN-KS 5 years

VM Medium Server Bundie
V-ML SVR BNDL SNGL
V-SVR BASIC SPT 5YR

Cassidian Communications VESTA 4 Licenses
VESTA Prime - Standard Operations

VS SML PER SEAT LIC

SPT VS SML 5YR

Workstation Equipment - 2220

WKST HP Z220 SFF

TWR STAND SFF 2220

NIC ETHERNET/PCIE CARD

Redundant network connectivity

MNTR FP WIDE SCR LCD 22IN

10FT DVI TO DVI EXTENSION CBL DVI-M/DVI-F
10FT DVI-D Single Link Cable (M-M)

KVM SWITCH DVI 4-PORT

R4 SAM HDWR KIT

SAM EXT SPKRKIT

R4 IWS CFG

R4 IWS STG FEE

CPR/SYSPREP IMAGING

Panduit Minicom Kit for front & back room
KEYPAD 24KEY 12FT CBL

ONEAC 700VA DOUBLE CONV RM/FM UPS
Cassidian Communications VESTA 4 Modules
Cassidian Communications VESTA 4 IRR Modu
R4 IRR LIC/DOC/MED

R4 IRR SW SPT 5YR

R4 ACT VIEW LIC PER ST

VESTA 4 System

le

Cassidian Communications VESTA 4 Activity View

Unit Price um
$2,142.86 EA
$714.29 EA
$1,428.57 EA
$502.86 EA
$11.43 EA
$0.00 EA
$621.43 EA
$957.14 EA
$180.00 EA
$142.86 UN
$493.00 EA
$578.00 EA
$27,540.00 EA
INCLUDED EA
$3,928.57 EA
INCLUDED EA
$2,268.57 EA
$60.00 EA
$67.14 EA
$470.00 EA
$35.90 EA
$25.24 EA
$344.29 EA
$2,360.00 EA
$240.00 EA
$285.71 EA
$428.57 EA
$0.00 EA
$166.04 EA
$157.14 EA
$501.71 EA
$1,421.43 EA
INCLUDED EA
$1,071.43 EA

$4,285.71
$1,428.57
$1,428.57

$502.86
$11.43

Optional

Optlonal
Optional
Optional
Optional
Optional

$493.00
$578.00

$27,540.00
$0.00

$7,857.14
$0.00

$4,537.14|
$120.00
$268.57

$940.00
$71.80
$50.49
$688.57
$4,720.00
$480.00
$571.43
$857.14
$0.00
$332.09
$314.29
$1,003.43

$2,842.86
$0.00

Optional|



[ e N

[ NRT NP A SSP. VT %

[ M)

NwWwNN

[N Y O O O G Y

-

Qty.

873099-00702
809800-35124

61000-409603SFF
65000-47001
63000-221691
F2E4142B10
DVIDSMM10
809800-00102

873099-00602
873099-01102

04000-26201

04000-00129
04000-00180
04000-00116
04000-00118

00600-20042
63009-192801
06500-02300
04000-00706
00600-20142
04000-50032
809800-80044
04000-004B4
04000-00607
04000-60611
04000-RMM19
GETHW-KIT002
ON2000XAU-SN
ONXBCU-417

GP951-94

Part No.

873399-00102.1
873391-04003

873391-04002
04000-00339

873391-04001
809800-03605

R4 ACTIV VIEW SYS LIC
R4 ACT VIEW SW SPT 5YR

WKST HP 2220 SFF

TWR STAND SFF 2220

MNTR FP WIDE SCR LCD 22IN

10FT DVI TO DVI EXTENSION CBL DVI-M/DVI-F
10FT DVI-D Single Link Cable (M-M)

GENERIC WKST CFG FEE

Cassidian Communications VESTA 4 CDR Module

R4 CDR SVRLIC
R4 CDR PER SEAT LIC

Customer will use AC powsr adapter at each IP
phone and not PoE

HP Switch/Router Equipment
SWITCH 2620 24-PORT

Peripherals & Gateways

MED 1000B CHASSIS BNDL
SW SPT M1000 GATEWAY 5YR
MED 1000 FXO-LS BNDL

MED 1000 FXS BNDL

Customer will provide security appliance

Peripherals & Cabinet Equipment
CABINET 42U 19IN

MNTR RACK KYBD 1U 19IN

SHELF 19IN CAB MT BLK

FAN KIT BLK

CABINET ROOF FAN HOLE

SEISMIC BRACING KIT

SVR CAB CFG FEE

KV 4-PORT SWITCH

CBL KVM USB CONSOLE

CBL KVM USB 10FT

BRKT 19IN RACK MTG/ARBITR

1/2" concrete floor anchor kit

ONEAC ON2000 ONSERIES UPS W/SW
ONEAC BATTERY PACK

Time Synchronization Equipment

GPS NETCLOCK PACKAGE

+ NetClock Model 9483 with OCXO Oscillator

+ TimeView® Display Clock Model TV400W with Power Supply

- GPS Outdoor Antenna Model 8225

+ GPS Antenna Surge Protector Model 8226
« Qutdoor GPS Antenna Cable, 100 ft.

+ RS-485 Station Cable, 100 ft.

$5,000.00
$3,000.00

$2,268.57
$60.00
$470.00
$35.90
$25.24
$357.14

$1,557.14
$128.57

$775.71

$2,621.43
INCLUDED
$494.29
$474.29

$4,714.29
$995.71
$114.29
$242.86
$211.43
$28.57
$1,571.43
$631.43
$197.14
$118.57
$45.71
$36.40
$2,409.00
$744.86

$7,920.79

Aurora LITE - MIS System

Description
Aurora 2.2 - LITE MIS System
AURORA 2.1 DOC/MED
AURORA LITE LIC

AURORA LITE USER LIC
SQL 2008R2 CAL RUN ENT

AURORA LITE COLLECT LIC
AURORA LITE SPT 5YR

Unit Price

$0.00
$0.00

$535.71
$251.43

$857.14
$514.29

Aurora LITE Server Equipment for Virtualized Server Bundle

um

2

TEES

R P

P

Optional
Optional

Optional
Optional
Optional
Optional
Optional
Optional

$3,114.29
$257.14

$1,551.43

$5,242.86

$4,714.29
$995.71
$114.29
$242.86
$211.43
$28.57
$1,571.43
$631.43
$197.14
$474.29
$45.71
$36.40
$4,818.00
$1,489.71

$7,920.79

VESTA 4 System Subtotal $98,012.27

Total

$0.00
$0.00

$535.71
$251.43

$1,714.29
$1,028.57




04000-00340
64000-40098
64000-20068
809800-51101

C2660DN

Note: Additional RAM and Hard Drive to be
installed in DDS-B Server. Hard Drive to be
used as backup drive.

SQL 2008R2 SVR RUN ENT

4GB RAM ML310E/G8

HARD DRIVE 500GB LFF

AURORA COHAB STG FEE

Color Laser Printer

$98.57
$132.86
$382.86
$285.71

$528.57

g FFEF

$98.57
$132.86
$382.86
$285.71

$528.57
$4,958.57

Qty.

N

NN N

(6]1%

| -
4
P O e G e ¥

O S Nt A St e

Qty.

120

Part No.

PA-0SG-OV00
PA-0SG-OVSL
SA-0SG-OVSL-5Y

63000-221681
F2E4142B10
DVIDSMM10

861390-00101
861363-00101

Part No.

04000-00127-SP
04000-00116
04000-00118
04000-00132
04000-00144

04000-26201

61000-409603SFF
65000-47001
65000-00163

63000-221691
04000-01005
853030-00302
853004-00401
809800-00102
04000-01586

64007-50016

Part No.

809800-17101

Aurora - MIS System Subtotal

ORION Mapping

Description
ORION Vela Mapping Multi Product Purchase
ORVL MED/DOC ADD-ON
ORVL LIC ADD-ON
SPT ORION VELA 5YR

ORION Mapping Workstation Equipment
MNTR FP WIDE SCR LCD 22IN

10FT DVI TO DVI EXTENSION CBL DVI-M/DVI-F
10FT DVI-D Single Link Cable (M-M)

Map Build and Centerline Reports
ORVL MAP BUILD-STD
ORVL MAP-RPT CTRLN

ORIO

Unit Price um

$0.00
$3,571.43
$2,500.00

$470.00
$35.90
$25.24

$2,975.71
$944.29

Mapping Subtotal

Optional Parts/Spares

Description
VESTA 4 Equipment - Recommended Spares
MED 10008 CHASSIS SPARE
MED 1000 FXO-LS BNDL
MED 1000 FXS BNDL
MED 1000B PWR SPLY BNDL
MED 1000B CPU BNDL

SWITCH 2620 24-PORT

2220 Workstation Equipment - Recommended Spares

WKST HP 2220 SFF

TWR STAND SFF 2220

NIC ETHERNET/PCIE CARD
Redundant network connectivity
MNTR FP WIDE SCR LCD 22IN
KVM SWITCH DVI 4-PORT

R4 SAM HDWR KIT

SAM EXT SPKR KIT

GENERIC WKST CFG FEE
WARR 24X7 2220 5YR

KEYPAD 24KEY 12FT CBL

Unit Price um

$2,621.43
$494.29
$474.29
$507.14
$1,008.57

$775.71

$2,268.57
$60.00
$67.14

$470.00
$344.29
$2,360.00
$240.00
$357.14
$645.71

$167.14

Optional Parts/Spares Subtotal

Services
Description

Field Engineering Services
SYSTEM CONFIGURATION/PROGRAMMING
SYSTEM INSTALATION

Project Management Services
AT&T PROJECY MANAGEMENT

Tralning

Unit Price um

$142.86
$15,147.84

INCLUDED

Total

Total

Total

Optlonal
Optional
Optlonal

Optional
Optional
Optional

Optlional
Optional

Optional

Optional
Optional
Optional
Optlonal
Optlonal

Optional

Optional
Optional
Optional

Optlonal
Optional
Optional|
Optional
Optional
Optional

Optional

Optional

$17,142.86
$15,147.84

INCLUDED




Note: Training is provided at the customer site
using the customer owned equipment. Prices
are per student unless otherwise indicated.
Minimum number of students is 6 and

X maximum number of students is 8 per class
and 2 students per position.

1 000001-06701 VSENT 4.X AGENT TRNG $1,714.29 EA $2,400.00
Note: VESTA/Sentinel 4/X Agent bundle
includes (1) 1/2 day class of Agent training for
up to 8 students. Includes trainer's daily
training expenses and travel. VESTA/Sentinel
4.X Agent training does not include training on
the SIP phones. SIP phone training is a
separate class and can be quoted upon
request.

1 000001-06704 VSENT 4.X ADMIN TRNG $5,714.29 EA $4,000.00
Note: VESTA/Sentinel 4/X Admin bundle
includes (1) 1 1/2 day class of Admin training
for up to 8 students. Includes trainer's daily
training expenses and travel,

1 000001-06799 VSENT 4.X SIP TRNG $1,714.29 EA $2,400.00
Note: VESTA/Sentinel 4/X SIP bundle includes
(1) 1/2 day class of SIP phone training for up to
8 students. Includes trainer's daily training
expenses and travel.

Auriora Lite MIS Reporting Package Training
1 000000-24407 AURORA LITE ONSITE TRNG $1,397.14 EA $978.00
Note: Aurora Lite Onsite Training includes two
hours of Admin training for up to 8 students.
This course is for Aurora Lite customers who
require an instructor-led course at the
customers site. This course is provided during
the regular system training.

Ma

Activity View Training required if ACT-VIEW Option is Selected
1 000001-06074 VSENT 4.X ACT-VIEW TRNG $1,714.29 EA Optional
Note: VESTA/Sentinel 4/X Activity View bundle
includes (1) 1/2 day class of Admin training for
up to 8 students. Includes trainer's daily
training expenses and travel.

Mapping Training required If Mapping Option is Selected
2 000001-45711 ORVL AGENT TRNG $1,714.29 SuU Optional
Note: ORION Vela Agent bundie includes (1)
1,2 day class of Admin training for up to 8
students. Includes trainer's daily training
expenses and travel.

1 000001-25714 ORVL ADMIN TRNG $8,571.43 suU Optional
Note: ORION Vela Admin bundle includes (1) 3
day class of Admin training for up to 8 students.
Includes trainer's daily training expenses and
travel.

Cutover Coaching
1 000001-08538 CUTOVER COACHING $2,857.14 suU $2,000.00
Note: Cutover Coaching includes (1) 8 hour
session within a 24 hour day. Includes trainer's
daily training expenses and travel.

Cassidian Communications Services Subtotal $44,068.70

Cassidian Communications 4X Phones
Description Unit Price

Cassidian Communications 4X Phones

IP PHN LIC ENH- Includes ALI Display $2,285.71




04000-06757
04000-01675

1

ORION Mapping

Services

L

lan Communic
Aurora - MIS System
ORION Mapping
Managed Services

AASTRA 67571 SIP PHN
AASTRA 6751 20K EXP MOD

: -A

Note: NO UPS Provided for Phone

Cassidian Communications 4X Phones Subtotal

Quote Summary

Cassidian Communications VESTA 4 Systm
Aurora - MIS System
Cassidlan Communications 4X Phones

Optlonal Parts/Spares

60 Months Malntenance Parts and Labor

Power Draw Information
ations VESTA 4 System

Total Amps 31.74
Total Watts/VA 3808.8
Total KVA 3.8088
BTU's 10401.8328

$98,012.27

$4,958.57
$3,031.43
OPTIONAL
OPTIONAL
$44,068.70
$35,695.54

Conﬂguration Notes

2-position VESTA 4 with Aurora Lite- Optional; VelaMapping, Activity View




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: - |- |4 Estimate of time required: 0 -5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: §47-0966
4, Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

- District Attorney

Department Name: Community Development

D LM(/Cﬁnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

,_”_‘
e

Agenda [tem No.



Storey County Community Bevelopment
Busginess {0

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 23,2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the July 1, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. WIZE SOLUTIONS, INC. - Contractor / 2724 South 3600 West ~ W Valley City, UT (contractor)
B. MURPHY BUILT CONST - 620 Tahoe Street ~ Reno (contractor)
C. NETRONIX INTEGRATION, INC. — 2170 Paragon Drive ~ San Jose, CA (contractor)

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sherift’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev, Assessor’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 1, 2014 Estimate of time required: 30 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: 1. Approval of Resolution 14-405 which determines that Storey County does not
approve a boundary line adjustment between Storey County and Washoe County pursuant to
provisions in Senate Bill (SB) 272 Sections 1 and 3(2). For further clarification, Section 1 of SB
272 pertains to property now situated in Storey County in an area more commonly referred to
as “Sunny Hills”. This action does not involve the area referenced in Section 1.5 of SB 272
adjacent to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. Boundary line resolutions for Section 1.5 were
approved by both the Storey County and Washoe County Boards of Commissioners on June
17, 2014 as provided for in Section 2 (3) of SB 272.

2. Approval of Resolution 14-406 rescinding Resolution 14-397 which called for an
advisory question to be placed on the November 2014 General Election ballot relative to a
possible boundary line adjustment between Storey County and Washoe County in an area
more commonly referred to as “Sunny Hills”. If Resolution 14-405 is passed, this action would
eliminate any applicability of the results of a General Election advisory question. If approved,
this resolution also provides notice to the clerk the ballot question is withdrawn.

2. Recommended motion:

1. Move to approve Resolution 14-405 which determines that Storey County does
not approve of a boundary line adjustment in the area commonly referred to as Sunny Hills.

2. If Resolution 14-405 is approved; Move to approve Resolution 14-406
rescinding Resolution 14-397 which authorized placement of an advisory question
regarding a boundary line adjustment in an area commonly referred to as Sunny Hills.

If Resolution 14-405 is not approved; Move to retain the provisions of Resolution 14-397
and reject approval of Resolution 14-406.
3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: County Commissioner’s Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: Note: This report encompasses two agenda item. See page 2 for summary.

5. Supporting materials:

A. Draft Resolution 14-405
B. Draft Resolution 14-406



Mmoo

e

Approved Resolution 14-397

May 6, 2014 Commission Meeting Minutes

Correspondence from Sunny Hills representive dated February 15, 2013 which includes
maps and the target property legal description.

SB 272 Bill as enrolled from the 2013 Legislative session.

6. Fiscal impact: No negative fiscal impact known. These actions would prevent potential loss of
ad valorem revenues.

Funds Available: Fund: _____ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
____ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
__ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
/\_\& ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[]
[]

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Approved
Denied

A
bed b

Agenda Item No.

2. Staff Summary (continued):

1.

Resolution 14-405, if approved, would provide a conclusive determination of the
second component of legislation enacted during the 2013 Legislative Session under
Senate Bill (SB) 272. Sections of SB 272 identified specific land areas in an area
commonly referred to as “Sunny Hills” and authorized a boundary line change between
Storey and Washoe Counties contingent upon passage by resolution of both County
Boards of Commissioners. Project proponents for Sunny Hills have met with
Commissioners and staff and held public meetings in an effort to gain public and
government support of their project. During these meetings and in following
discussions it has become abundantly clear that a very large majority of our citizens
strongly prefer to not authorize a boundary line adjustment to further facilitate
development. Staff acknowledges that there are a limited number of voices saying
there may be room for compromise and negotiation. However, there is very strong
consensus that any development of the scope being suggested will significantly
deteriorate the quality of life in our communities and pose greatly increased risks for
wild land fire occurrences. Additionally, it has been determined by legal counsel, there
is no method or authority provided under Nevada Revised Statutes that allows financial
compensation between Counties nor to our citizens to compensate for lost revenue and
degraded quality of life.

Commissioner Sjovangen has requested consideration of a vote that determines, by
resolution that Storey County does not approve of a boundary line adjustment in the



Sunny Hills area, adjacent to our Highlands community. Staff fully concurs with this
request and recommends Commission approval of Resolution 14-405.

. In May of this year, The Board of Commissioners voted unanimously to approve
Resolution 14-397 which started the process of instructing the County Clerk to place an
advisory question on the November 2014 General Election ballot pertaining to the
Sunny Hills boundary line adjustment. At this meeting, the question was raised as to
whether this action could be rescinded or withdrawn. Our Clerk advised us that
placement could be voided or withdrawn by subsequent action, so long as that occurred
on or before July 21%.

If, the Board of Commissioners approves Resolution 14-405 determining they will not
approve a boundary line adjustment for the Sunny Hills area as provided for in SB 272
Section 3(2), this action would eliminate any applicability of the results of a General
Election advisory question. Staff recommends approval contingent on approval of
Resolution 14-405. Should Resolution 14-405 not pass or be heard, staff recommends
rejection of Resolution 14-406 and leaving the provisions of Resolution 14-397 in
effect.



STOREY COUNTY RESOLUTION 14-405

Declining to approve a boundary line adjustment between Storey
County and Washoe County pursuant to provisions in Section 1 of
Senate Bill (SB) 272 of the 2013 Legislative Session

Whereas, the Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272 during its
2013 Legislative Session authorizing a revision of the boundary line
between Storey County and Washoe County upon the adoption of
resolutions by the Storey and Washoe County Boards of Commissioners;

and

Whereas, Section 1 of Senate Bill 272 identifies land now in Storey
County that would move in to Washoe County to facilitate development,
an area more commonly referred to as “Sunny Hills”; and

Whereas, any action on Section 1 is completely independent of action
taken on land identified in Section 1.5 of SB 272.; and

Whereas, Project proponents for “Sunny Hills” have approached the
Storey County Commissioners, Staff and our Citizens in an effort to gain
approval from the Board of County Commissioners as authorized in
Section 1 of SB 272; and

Whereas, Although a limited number of voices of the citizens of Storey
County have expressed some interest in negotiating a boundary line
adjustment, the overwhelming majority have expressed strong and deeply
held beliefs that facilitating development in this area will be a detriment to
their quality of life; and

Whereas, There is no method provided in Nevada Revised Statutes to
allow financial compensation between Counties and/or to our citizens to
compensate for lost revenue and degraded quality of life.

Now Therefore, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County
hereby resolve to decline any consideration of a Resolution as provided
for in Section 1 of Senate Bill 272 of the 2013 Nevada Legislative Session,
pursuant to Section 3(2) of that act, to the boundary line between Storey
County and Washoe County.



Passed, Approved and Adopted this 1% day of July, 2014, by Storey
County Honorable Board of Commissioners.

Marshall McBride, Chairman, Date
Storey County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk Date



STOREY COUNTY RESOLUTION 14-406

A Resolution rescinding approval of Resolution 14-397 placing an
advisory question on the November 2014 General Election ballot
regarding a boundary line adjustment between Storey County and
Washoe County in area more commonly referred to as “Sunny Hills”.

If approved, this item also provides notice to the clerk of the ballot
question withdrawal by the Board.

Whereas, On May 5, 2014, the Storey County Board of Commissioners
voted unanimously to approve Storey County Resolution 14-395; and

Whereas, Resolution 14-395 resolved to place an advisory question on
the November 2014 General Election ballot regarding passage of a future
Resolution pertaining to Section 1 of Senate Bill 272 which specifically
identifies land now in Storey County that would move in to Washoe
County to facilitate development, an area more commonly referred to as
“Sunny Hills”; and

Whereas, Project proponents for “Sunny Hills” have approached the
Storey County Commissioners, Staff and Citizens in an effort to gain
approval from the Board of County Commissioners as authorized in
Section 3(2) of SB 272; and

Whereas, while some citizens of Storey County have expressed interest in
negotiating a boundary line adjustment, the overwhelming majority have
expressed strong and deeply held beliefs that facilitating development in
this area will be a detriment to their quality of life and pose greatly
increased wild land fire risks; and

Whereas, There is no method provided in Nevada Revised Statutes to
allow financial compensation between Counties and/or to our citizens to
compensate for lost revenue and degraded quality of life; and

Whereas, the Storey County Board of Commissioners are scheduled to
consider Resolution 14-405 which would decline to approve the boundary
line adjustment referenced above; and,

Whereas, approval of Resolution 14-405 would eliminate any applicability
of the results of a General Election advisory question.



Now, Therefore, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County
hereby resolve to rescind Storey County Resolution 14-397. This item
also provides notice to the clerk of the ballot question withdrawal

by the Board.

Passed, Approved and Adopted this 1 day of July, 2014, by Storey
County Honorable Board of Commissioners.

Marshall McBride, Chairman, Date
Storey County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk Date



Resolution No. 14-397

A Resolution of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners
to place an advisory question on the ballot
at the 2014 general election regarding a revision to the boundary
between Storey County ang Washoe County.

Whereas, the Nevada State Legislature, has amended NRS 243.240 to allow the revision of
the boundary line between Storey County and Washoe County effective on the adoption of a
resolution by the Boards of County Commissioners of Storey County and Washoe County.

Whereas, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners desires that this advisory
question be placed on the 2014 general election ballot so that the citizens of Storey County may
vote on the question.

Whereas, the result of the voting on this question does not place any legal requirement on the
Board.

Whereas, there is a time limitation of June 30, 2013, that the Boards of Storey and Washoe
Counties must act by if there is to be a revision in the boundary.

The Board of County Commissioners resolves to place the following advisory question on the
2014 general election ballot:

Should the Storey County Board of County Commissioners pass a resolution revising the
boundary between Storey County and Washoe County that would result in approximately 1192
acres of property currently in Storey County becoming part of Washoe County?

A. The explanation of the question.

The question asks if approximately 1192 acres in Storey County should become part of
Washoe County. The property is part of what is known as Sunny Hills. (See attached map)

The Sunny Hills property lies in both Washoe and Storey County. Currently there is no
infrastructure in Story County to support the development of the Sunny Hills property inside
Storey County. The Sunny Hills property located in Washoe County is identified in the Truckee
Meadows Regional Plan and is included within the Truckee Meadows Service Area in the City
of Reno’s Sphere of Influence. This area is currently planned to be served by infrastructure
located within the City of Reno and Washoe County.

The Nevada Legislature passed SB 272 during the 2013 session. SB 272 amended the
statutory provisions in NRS section 243.340 to allow two boundary changes between the
counties. Any revision requires the approval of both Storey and Washoe County. The two
boundary line revisions are contained in section 1 and section 1.5 of chapter 94, Statutes of

1



Nevada 2013, at pages 307 and 310, respectively. Section 1 describes a boundary change that
would include approximately 1192 acres of property (part of Sunny Hills) currently in Storey
County into Washoe County. Section 1.5 describes a boundary change of land in currently in
Washoe County north of the Truckee River and south of I-80 east of Mustang and west of
Waltham Way that would become part of Storey County. This question only addresses the
section 1 boundary change.

In order to make the boundary adjustment in section 1 of the act effective, the boards of
county commissioners of both Washoe and Storey County, before June 30, 2015, must pass a
resolution approving the revisions to the boundary line between the counties.

B. The digest:

1. If the Storey and Washoe Boards pass a resolution revising the boundary, Storey County
will lose the real property tax revenue paid by the property and Washoe County will gain the real
property tax revenue. Storey County may also lose revenue because there is a possibility that the
development of the property would increase its value and generate more real property tax.

Storey County may have to provide services that would be paid for by the increase in revenue.

2. Existing laws that will be changed by the approval of a resolution by both Storey and
Washoe County Boards to revise the boundary between the counties:
a) NRS 243.333 Boundary of Storey County
b) NRS 243.340 Boundary of Washoe County

If the Boards of County Commissioners of both counties approve a resolution moving the
boundary to include the approximately 1192 acres into Washoe County, the appropriate version
of NRS 243.340 will become effective. The Boards may adopt both boundary revisions, either
of the revisions, or none of the revisions.

C. The result of the voting on this question does not place any legal requirement on the
governing body, any member of the governing body or any officer of the political subdivision.

Adopted this | day of M O Al 2014 by the following vote:

Vote: Ayes: Commissioners: (Y ‘\(’_6 | d €
Q‘\'\ TaaYeNda
_dlavangen
= o

Nays: Commissioners: ([\\C) {ie . -

TP




Absent: Commissioners: 1\\0\/\‘6

MarshalfMcBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ALA

Vanessa Stephens’ '

Clerk & Treastirer, Storey County
B L) St




VO

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, MAY 6T, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Gilman, Commissioner Sjovangen, Deputy District
Attorney Anne Langer, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Tourism
Director Deny Dotson, Outside Counsel Robert Morris, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Public Works
Director Mike Nevin, Community Services Director Cherie Nevin, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Planner
Dessie Redmond and Fire Chief Gary Hames.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 10:00a.m.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for May 6, 2014

Mark Joseph Phillips: Item #15 - as it was continued from last meeting when Commissioner Gilman
left, he would like it included in the agenda. Item #16 - is listed as a possible action, but it is unclear
what action will be taken.

Pat Whitten — on item #15 - It is not unusual for local state or federal elected officials and staff to
occasionally leave a meeting for other critical duties. This particular item, while routine, has been
challenged before under conflict of interest because there is a Bucket of Blood parking payment on
there. So that is why it is back on this agenda.

(Item #11) DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appeal from Ardagh regarding the Storey
County Building Officials determination for building permit fees.




Motion: Continue appeal to an indefinite date, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote
(summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Approve agenda for May 6, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 15, 2014

Motion: Approve minutes of April 15, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen
Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

CONSENT AGENDA

5. For possible action approval of the First Judicial District Court proposed budgets for fiscal year
2015 in the amount of $29,04548 and fiscal year 2016in the amount of $29,814.03 for
reimbursement from the State Child Support Enforcement Program.

6. For possible approval first reading of Liquor License for Philly’s NV located at 420 USA Parkway

7. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

a.
b.
C.

d.
e.

Idea Drilling- General /1997 9th Ave, Virginia, MN (mining contractor)

Summerwinds Resort Services, LLC - General/164A C Street, VC (timeshare sales)
Streamline Construction, INC - Contractor/8445 Sierra College Blvd, Granite Bay, CA
(contractor)

Gold Hill Printers - Home Business/1230 Main Street, Gold Hill (printing novelties)
Intelligrated Systems, LLC - Contractor/7901 Innovation Way, Mason OH

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve consent agenda for May 6, 2014, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary:

Yes=3)

8. DISCUSSION (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

Adam Robello, Chairman Mark Twain Community Center:

Attendance has been increasing.

Calendar is filling up.

Becoming regular participants in the VC parades.

Mustang Cares Food Program has a new committee leader, Maggie Mahan.

We will be getting assistance from the USDA with food boxes for the low-income seniors
in our community starting today.

The library is up and running with many books.

Our bank account is still the same with $600.

We are still waiting on repairs. I spoke with Mr. Nevin and he said that as soon as they
have free time they will send Jason down to complete them so we may get our permit.

2




e Neighborhood watch is starting and their meeting is tomorrow at 6pm.

e  We've had several political meetings and candidates utilizing the building. Girl Scouts
and 4H have shown interest as well.

e Mother’s Day tea will be on the 10t at 1:30 and all are invited.

e Our public board meetings are on the third Wednesday of each month.

e Still waiting on the Federal side to hear on the 501c3. It has been submitted and fees have
been paid.

Deny Dotson, VCTC:

e Thanks to Suzie Loyer and Hugh Roy Marshall for working with the county on the few
things we had with the Grand Prix as well as the other events; Fourth of July, and the
Camel Races. We are also working with them on a long term plan to secure a smoother
transition on the application process for all of our events.

o It's the 31t year of Chili on the Comstock. It has grown to quite an event. We will be
looking at closing the street for two days from Taylor to Union Street. Some merchants
enjoy that, and some have questions. Unfortunately, it is one of those things where it is
too big for our parking lots and too small to extend to the whole street so we have to find a
happy medium.

o Jim Collins saved us a considerable amount of money with a local bid on restoring our
billboard at the north end of town. We should have a design for the Comstock History
center to approve here in the next couple weeks and we’ll get that up.

o This last weekend was our first Flashback Fridays. We put through about four hundred
people on Friday that picked up a map, walked through town, went through all of our
museums. Some of the early feedback I had was that it was their best day for donations
came from Saint Mary’s church that they have had in a long time. The Way it Was
Museum reported that it was their best merchandise day. Some other folks had some
other things that we need to work through, but for our first run, which was kind of a blind
run, I was pretty happy with the turnout.

County Manager Pat Whitten asked Mr. Dotson to share details about the three bids they received on
the billboard repair. Mr. Dotson reported that there was a bid for about $90k with all the bells and
whistles (very elaborate). Another bid came in at about $60k to do a board that was dual sided and
had some extra stuff on it. Jim Collins was able to completely restore the board with high grade
panels, redo the framework with suspension and tie-wires and what-not and some new foundations
for $9960. So it saved us a considerable amount of money to just have a local person do it and
hopefully it will be there to outlast us all.

Grants and Emergency Management Coordinator, Cherie Nevin:

e Highlands evacuation drill will take place on May 17th. The evacuation center will be at
the VC Middle School. We will also be offering pet micro-chipping and dog licensing
open to all Storey County residents from 12-3pm.

e October 18th - we are in the planning stages for the next Storey County Health Fair to be
held at Piper’s Opera House.

e Thank you to the Fire Department and their fuels crew for the help they gave us a couple
weeks ago down at the Lockwood Community Garden removing some weeds and other
debris. The volunteers are getting the beds filled up and ready for the summer growing
season. Hillside Elementary School is also getting involved now doing some projects. We

3




have closed the grant for this project and we have one of the best looking gardens around.
I've toured a couple of the community gardens in the surrounding area and out of state
and ours looks pretty good so thank you to the folks in Lockwood that are working to
keep that up and running.

Thank you to Community Chest and the local 4H club for their help this past week with a
couple of seniors and helping them remove a couple of items during the community
cleanup event.

As Adam mentioned, we are starting a commodity senior food program for the Mark
Twain community. This is for seniors over the age of sixty that meet certain income
guidelines. USDA was out two weeks ago at the food pantry and we signed up three folks
then. They’ll be delivering those items to Community Chest in Virginia City which is their
normal drop on Tuesdays until we get fifteen signed up and then they’ll deliver right to
their center. USDA will be out again at the next food pantry date to hopefully get some
more sign-ups.

Last week I met with the Nevada Rock Art Foundation and we are working with them on
some access issues they are having.

Dessie, in planning, and I have been working to submit an application which is due
tonight at 9pm. It is called the Citizens Institute for Rural Design Grant Program. Itis the
first time we have ever applied for anything like this. It is a program that provides
communities under 50k with access to resources they need to convert ideas into reality.
They offer small grants to rural communities to come in and host a 22 day workshop
with our staff. They bring in professional designers. The grant award would be for $7k
and we would have to come up with a $7k in kind match. We have been very successful
in getting I think up to 10 letters of support from both our county officials, USDA, the
Historic Commission, Tom Grey at the Railroad, and we hope those letters help push our
application over the top. We should hear by June weather or not we were successful.

I will miss the May 19th meeting as I will be traveling with Dessie to Tonopah for two days
to attend the CDBG grant administration workshop which is mandatory.

Pam Abercrombie, Community Chest:

This weekend we had the first annual Cow Dunk in collaboration with Storey County Fire
and Sheriff and Lyon County Fire and Sheriff. Lyon County took the trophy for raising
the most money and Lyon County Sheriff took the basketball tournament. It was
competitive and we had a great turnout and raised almost $4k for the Classroom on
Wheels program.

The Yard Sale brought in $600 which will go toward our Global Voice program.

Pam acknowledged the library director, Kris Klug. We now have an average library use of
55 which is up from 36 in March. She listed some of the new programs. County Manager
Pat Whitten asked her to provide more detail on hours and numbers as far as books and
usage, which she did including over 12k books, classes, programs, computers, history,
budget and fundraising. Comparatively, the $55k budget compares to over $100k on the
old library which was closed, so Mr. Whitten complimented the value.

Gary Hames, Storey County Fire Protection District:

Fuel projects are still at the forefront. The chipper working on Geiger had significant

mechanical issues, but is back up and running. He explained the legal authority to clear

fire hazards and how they have worked with residents, knocked on doors and addressed
4




minor complaints. He clarified that they are not cutting on private property, but on road
and street easements. They have received a threat from one property owner that is being
addressed by the Sheriff, but on the flip side, many letters and emails commending the
work they’re doing.

Seasonal academy started yesterday. We are ramping up staff and will ramp back down
in October.

Report on equipment maintenance and acquisition.

Report on reserve staffing.

Report on volunteer, Kristen Chandler, Secretary/ Treasurer who is doing a phenomenal
job recruiting.

The volunteer fire department was the recipient of a Time Share at Lake Havasu in
Arizona. They are holding a raffle for airfare, rental car, and seven days at the Time Share.
The tickets are $25 each and will be rolling out shortly to raise funds for the volunteer
department.

Dessie Redmond, Planning Department:

May 15t in Lockwood is the next Planning Commission meeting at the Rainbow Bend
Clubhouse at 6pm. It will be a Master Plan Workshop. Bicycle plan will be discussed.
200 residents have filled out the community survey. Please continue to spread the word.
It can be found on our website or a hard copy may be requested from the Planning
Department.

Lindy, on the planning staff, was recognized and has been working in the Planning
Department for about a year.

Working on the layout for the parking lot design and discussion is welcome in her office.
Cherie mentioned the CIRD award and she added that three or four landscape design
professionals are included in that award and how great it would be to win it.

Mike Nevin, Public Works:

Thanks to the Lyon County Public Works Department for dropping everything and
coming to our rescue on two occasions with their vactor truck in the last couple of weeks.
The paver project on a section of the C street sidewalk should be completed today.
Mentioned that the Comstock Firemen’s Museum has contributed $4250 to that project
which is about a third of the cost.

Working on the repointing of the west wall behind the courthouse.

Pool is scheduled to open June 16t. We'll be doing repairs and cleanup before the open.
May 21st there is a preconstruction meeting for the sewer plant and we are just waiting for
the USDA signature to get it kicked off.

Landscaping water is up and operating in all parks and fertilizing is in process.

Looking to participate with the Storey County School District to replace an old dilapidated
retaining wall behind Piper’s Opera House building and a portion of the Union Street
easement on the south side of the building. They are soliciting grant funding and we may
be able to participate in kind from the VC road maintenance fund.




Five mile reservoir rehabilitation project has been kicked off with a design, engineering
and soils analysis with a contract with Far West Engineering. Comstock Mining is
participating with a cost share of 50%.

Assisted the VC Senior Citizen’s Center in auctioning off a vehicle that they had received
as a donation that needed a lot of repair. It generated $3450 for them.

We will be bringing on seasonal intermittent employees and go to summertime hours. Job
announcement will go out this week.

We lost a recirculation pump at the water plant and the new one came from the East coast.
We were on a conserve water status for a week. Thank you to all for cooperation.
Fireman’s museum received a grant from someone in Reno and contracted with Collins
construction to reconstruct the porch and do some additional work on the front of the
building. The commissioners all complimented how it all looks now.

Hugh Gallagher, Comptroller

Final budgets will be submitted for approval on May 19t and numbers are fairly solid.
Asked the public to bring concerns to him before the meeting.

Mark Twain 501c3 - They have a letter from the IRS to tell them to keep going as they are
and they will be approving it shortly.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro

There will be a small adjustment on our budget as the Senior Center informed us that they
will no longer be providing inmate meals. We will be repairing some equipment and have
found a provider that may save us money in the long run as far as food costs.

Fundraiser last weekend went very well and we look forward to participating again in the
future.

County Manager Pat Whitten

May 19th is a Monday and he made note of that change in the meeting day.

Finalizing with Mr. Morris and Mr. Maddox advertising the auction of the houses in the
parking lot area next door. We hope to be advertised by the next commission meeting and
have the auction by the end of the month.

Engineering plans are underway with Far West for the retaining wall and other lot
acquisitions are being looked at. Complimented Dessie Redmond in coming up with the
design to make it more than just bare asphalt.

Thanked Ms. Nevin and Ms. Redmond on their teamwork in procuring resources for the
beautification of the area.

Staff is beginning to devote many hours on the medical marijuana subject. It is
controversial and still against Federal law, so options are being considered for certificate
applications to the State. How that impacts us, and where it is banned by ordinance is
being looked at. Dessie Redmond is the point of contact for this.

9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

None

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve ordinance 14-257 of the board of county
commissioners of Storey county, Nevada authorizing and directing the issuance of a sewer

6




revenue interim debenture, series 2014 in anticipation of the receipt of certain funds and the
issuance and sale of a sewer revenue bond of the county therefor; providing the form, terms and
conditions of the debenture, the security therefor, the sale thereof, providing for adoption as if an
emergency exists, and providing other details in connection therewith.

Mr. Gallagher introduced Kendra Follett, of Sherman & Howard and explained the attachments
and NRS rules and timeframes for adoption. Pat Whitten complimented Ms. Follett and her
firm’s work.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident: Clarified that this is first reading and asked about
second reading after publication. He noted that there was no notice.

Ms. Follett explained that bond financings have a special provision in statute. The legislature
acknowledges that there is some urgency to adopting them. Local government securities law,
which is chapter 350 as Hugh mentioned (this particular site 355.79) allows for adoption in one
reading as if an emergency exists--which is just procedural; no emergency needs to be declared.
It is permitted by the legislature so this is the introduction and adoption. It will be published
twice by title as provided in NRS 244 and also 350.

Motion: Approve ordinance 14-257 of the board of county commissioners of Storey county, Nevada
authorizing and directing the issuance of a sewer revenue interim debenture, series 2014 in
anticipation of the receipt of certain funds and the issuance and sale of a sewer revenue bond of the
county therefor; providing the form, terms and conditions of the debenture, the security therefor, the
sale thereof, providing for adoption as if an emergency exists, and providing other details in
connection therewith, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman Seconded by
Commissioner Sjovangen Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

11. (moved to continue during discussion of item #3 - approval of agenda)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 14-256
changing the name of the 474 fire protection district, amending the description of the boundaries
of the 474 fire district to include all of Storey County and deleting Chapter 2.57 of the Storey
County Code to reflect the dissolution of the 473 fire protection district.

Deputy District Attorney Bob Morris explained the ordinance and recommended approval.

Motion: Approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 14-256 changing the name of the 474 fire
protection district, amending the description of the boundaries of the 474 fire district to include all of
Storey County and deleting Chapter 2.57 of the Storey County Code to reflect the dissolution of the
473 fire protection district, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-
Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve first reading of ordinance 14-255 deleting Storey
County Code chapters 8.12 Fire Hazards, 8.16 Fire and Explosive, and 8.20 Alarm Systems and
amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction to adopt new uniform codes including fire
and, building and constructions amending chapters 15.04, 15.08 Building Official, and 15.12




Permits to make amendments to the codes for Storey County specific requirements for other
properly related matters.

Deputy District Attorney Bob Morris explained the ordinance and recommended approval. He
suggested further discussion at second reading on some items for clarification on details
specifically on the appeals process.

Motion: Approve first reading of ordinance 14-255 deleting Storey County Code chapters 8.12 Fire
Hazards, 8.16 Fire and Explosive, and 8.20 Alarm Systems and amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and
Construction to adopt new uniform codes including fire and, building and constructions amending
chapters 15.04, 15.08 Building Official, and 15.12 Permits to make amendments to the codes for Storey
County specific requirements for other properly related matters, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote (summary: Yes=3)

The Chair called for a recess at 11:08am; the meeting was reconvened at 11:21am.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Resolution 14-397 of the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners to place an advisory question on the ballot at the 2014 general election regarding
a revision to the boundary between Storey County and Washoe County, in an area commonly
known as “Sunny Hills.”

Deputy District Attorney Bob Morris explained the resolution and recommended approval. He
proposed that two small changes be made to language not to change intent or operation. On first
page “property is part of the Sunny Hills development” change to “property is part of what is known
as Sunny Hills.” The next sentence, “The Sunny Hill property lies in both Washoe and Storey
County.” He asked that the language, still being developed, be strict regarding the general name of
the property as Sunny Hills rather than weather or not it is being developed. He has submitted the
changes to the clerk for them to sign so they may go ahead and approve the resolution today.

He answered the question of if the board may remove the question from the ballot and the timeframe
in which they may.

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk-Treasurer: A notice is prepared and ready to go into the
paper advertising for these committees. People may come to her office and get a form to fill out and
go on a list to be for or against and we will come back before the board at a later date to actually
appoint these committees and we will begin writing the arguments.

Garrett Gordon, Land Use Counsel for Sunny Hills: Initially was going to ask for a continuance due
to major revisions they want to make to the plan. Hearing that there is the opportunity to withdraw
the question, he is now okay with the timeframe he has to get more of a consensus on what they are
trying to do. He is happy with the language and will fill out a form to be on the “pro” list.

Mr. Whitten commended Mr. Gordon on getting the information to the public independent of the
county process. He also explained that Mr. Morris has crafted this resolution strictly to deal with the
parcels that are known as Sunny Hills that are situated and identified on the map and in the legal
description, and that this is totally independent of any ongoing dialogues and actions on the other

8




boundary line adjustment that was in that legislative bill as well in an area currently owned by Tahoe
Reno Industrial Center.

Lance Gilman noted that the development in Washoe County will go forward with or without this
property. This is a wonderful opportunity for the community to really examine what they may be
walking away from. If this county comes together in a no vote, this development will go forward and
the people in the Highlands will be left with no input on what happens with that property or with
their neighborhood. He hopes everyone will truly vet the process and see what they are willing to
give up, and be involved in, or not be involved in. He is committed to the voters and what they
decide, but hopes they truly consider their options.

Nicole Barde, Virginia City Highlands Resident - asked if the two boundary changes are included
together. Mr. Morris explained that the bill divides it into four different sections that separate them.
Ms. Bard asked if the resolution is passed, if it is passed as written or if changes may be made to the
boundary description by the developer. Mr. Morris said that the legislature set the boundaries and it
would be up to them to make any changes.

Dale Beach, Storey County Resident - Clarified that everyone in the county may vote on this.

Motion: Approve resolution 14-397 of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners to place an
advisory question on the ballot at the 2014 general election regarding a revision to the boundary
between Storey County and Washoe County, in an area commonly known as “Sunny Hills.”, Action:
Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion
carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Payroll Check date 03/28/2014 for
$367,647.69, date 04/11/14 for $472,598.18, date 04/24/14 for $369,371.63 and Accounts Payable
date 04/04/2014 for $254,057.20 and $3,052.72 and 04/18/14 for $689,976.61 and $4,162.01.

Motion: Approval of Payroll Check date 03/28/2014 for $367,647.69, date 04/11/14 for $472,598.18,
date 04/24/14 for $369,371.63 and Accounts Payable date 04/18/14 for $689,976.61 and $4,162.01,
Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman Seconded by Commissioner McBride Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

Mark Phillips - asked if the check to the Jeep Posse was issued and cashed even through the
controversy.

Dale Beach - doesn’t agree in leasing the parking lot and feels it should be gifted to the county.

Motion: Accounts Payable date 04/04/2014 for $254,057.20 and $3,052.72, Action: Approve Moved
by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2) Chairman McBride abstained from the vote.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: An amendment to the Special Use permit 2006-049 to
widen a top portion of an existing commercial wireless communications facility (existing “flag-
pole” cell tower) from 27 inches to 36 inches diameter in order to accommodate additional

9




wireless communications antennas. The existing facility applicable to the request for amendment
is located at 911 Highway 341 Gold Hill Divide, Storey County, Nevada (APN 002-023-11). This
file was continued at the April 17, 2014, Planning Commission meeting so that the applicant may
continue working with staff on recommended conditions of approval. The Applicant requests to
be heard at the June 5, 2014, Planning Commission and at the June 17 County Commission
meeting.

Planner Dessie Redmond recommended continuance.

Mark Joseph Phillips, Storey County Resident appreciates continuing this. He would like the D.A.’s
office to clear up the contract with the Jeep Posse before any action is taken. He submitted
documents on the property and parcel consolidation.

Pat Whitten explained that there is no fiscal change and is only regarding the special use permit.

Kay Dean, VC Highlands - brought up the lease with the Jeep Posse again as they are entering into
an agreement with another cell phone carrier.

Motion: Continue Special Use permit 2006-049 to the June 17, 2014 Board of County Commission
meeting, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit application to convert an existing
detached garage into a mother-in-law quarters at 2061 Cartwright Road (APN 003-092-86),
Virginia City Highlands (1 acre), Nevada.

Dessie Redmond explained the application and recommended approval. Commissioner Sjovangen
mentioned that he drove by the property and cannot see any problems with the permit. Vice-
Chairman Gilman noted that the neighbor also sent in a letter of support. Chairman McBride
attended the Planning meeting and also supports the permit.

Ms. Redmond read the Findings of Fact:

5.1.10 The Special Use Permit complies with all federal, state, and county regulations.

5.1.20 The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
adjacent properties or the surrounding area.

5.1.30 The conditions of the Special Use Permit adequately address potential fire hazards and require
compliance with the applicable fire codes, including setback and fire protection ratings.

5.1.40 The conditions under this Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements
in SCC Chapter 17.40 Estate Zone and Chapter 17.03.150 Special Use Permits, or any other federal,
state, or county regulations, including building and fire codes.

Motion: Approve Special Use Permit application to convert an existing detached garage into a
mother-in-law quarters at 2061 Cartwright Road (APN 003-092-86), Virginia City Highlands (1 acre),
Nevada, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by Vice-Chairman Gilman
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

10




18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: To amend Special Use Permit No. 2013-003 include
portions of two adjacent parcels and to exclude certain portions of land. The existing SUP
boundary includes all land within APN 004-301-06 located approximately in the SE1/4 of the
NE1/4 of Section 20 T17N, R21E (MDB&M). The proposed area to be added includes portions of
land within APN 800-000-69 located approximately in Section 20 T17N, R21E (MDB&M); and
APN 004-301-05, located approximately in the NW1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 20 T17N, R21E.
The modified SUP will exclude any land west and northwest of State Route 341 Right-of-Way.
The SUP is or the placement and operation of two portable (temporary) ore processing mills and
ancillary uses for the processing of ore originating from the subject property as described in the
submitted SUP application, and for the temporary placement of a shelter to house the processing
mills

Senior Planner/Administrative Officer Austin Osborne explained the amendment and submitted
some correspondence. This proposal expands boundary to include more property to accommodate
the facility for milling and mining,.

Findings of Fact:

1. SCC Section 17.32.020(N)(Uses subject to a special use permit) required a special use permit for
milling and processing related to mining in the Forestry Zone, in which the operation under
this SUP, inclusive of all areas of expansion, is located.

2. SUP No. 2013-003-A-1-2014 does not apply to other otherwise regulate mining and extraction.
Mining and extraction may take place concurrently with and on the same premises as the
processing use under this SUP.SCC 17.32.020(M) provides that mining and extraction are an
allowable use in the Forestry zone, but that they are regulated by the provisions of SCC
Chapter 17.92, by which a Small Operations Permit is required.

3. The conditions of this SUP are not in conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific
requirements of the Forestry Zone in which the proposed use will be located.

4. The proposed project and the final conditions it creates will not conflict with or cause
substantial adverse impacts to surrounding existing land uses.

5. The conditions under this SUP are at least as stringent as and not in conflict with the
applicable federal, state, and county regulations. The minimum requirements under SCC
Chapter 17.03 (Administrative Provisions) for special use permits are applied to conditions of
this SUP.

6. The conditions of approval under this SUP, as amended, impose sufficient regulations on the
proposed project to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on the surrounding environment
and closest land uses.

7. The conditions of this approval will modify the boundaries of existing SUP No. 2013-003 to
exclude all land located west and northwest of State Route 341.

Motion: Approve amending Special Use Permit No. 2013-003 include portions of two adjacent parcels
and to exclude certain portions of land. The existing SUP boundary includes all land within APN 004-
301-06 located approximately in the SE1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 20 T17N, R21E (MDB&M). The
proposed area to be added includes portions of land within APN 800-000-69 located approximately in
Section 20 T17N, R21E (MDB&M); and APN 004-301-05, located approximately in the NW1/4 of the
NE1/4 of Section 20 T17N, R21E. The modified SUP will exclude any land west and northwest of
State Route 341 Right-of-Way. The SUP is or the placement and operation of two portable
(temporary) ore processing mills and ancillary uses for the processing of ore originating from the

11




subject property as described in the submitted SUP application, and for the temporary placement of a
shelter to house the processing mills, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman Gilman Seconded
by Commissioner Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

Southland Industries - General/114 Megabyte (HVAC, Plumbing Design) TRI
Timmons Group, Inc. - Contractor/1001 Boulders Pkwy, Richmond, VA (Ardagh Supplier)
Cross Check Services, LLC - Contractor/1264 Lanny Lane, Olympic Valley, CA (Forestry)
Conco & Conco Pumping - Contractor/5141 Commercial, Concord, CA (Neptune
Contractor)

D.C. Electrical - Contractor/7771 Shalestone Way, Reno (Contractor)

Philly’s NV - General/420 USA Parkway (Restaurant) TRI

Mark Twain Community Center - Non-Profit/500 Sam Clemens Street, MT

Randa Accessories - General/700 USA Parkway, TRI

o o

5o o

Motion: Approve items a through f, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded
by Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

Motion: Continue items g and h, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Sjovangen Seconded by
Vice-Chairman Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Mr. Beach would like people in Mark Twain to clean up their properties. Noted public officials voted
out of office.

21. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 12:11p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

By

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer

12




m

Pat Whitten

From: Gordon, Garrett <GGordon@)|rlaw.com>

Sent: Friday, February 15, 2013 10:07 AM

To: Pat Whitten

Cc: Bill Maddox; 'stevewalker@gbis.com’

Subject: Sunny Hills

Attachments: Aerial Map.pdf; Elevation Perspective.pdf; Sunny Hills Land Use Plan.pdf; Sunny Hills
Land_Legal.pdf; Sunny Hills_Infrastructure Analysis.doc

Mr. Whitten:

It was a pleasure speaking with you this week. As discussed, our client (Sunny Hills Unitex) would like to bring
approximately 1,100 acres from Storey County into Washoe County. We understand this is not a trivial issue
and we have spent significant time and resources to compile significant data to support this request. We
believe this boundary line adjustment can be supported by: (i) reviewing current topographical conditions and
restraints, (ii} an analysis of the most realistic, cost-effective means of providing services to the property, and
(iii) guaranteeing the portion of Sunny Hills that would remain in Storey County is developed {(approx. 4,000-
5,000 acres of the property on the east side of the hillside would remain in Storey County for development

purposes).
I have attached the following information for your review and consideration:

1. Aerial Map

2. Elevation Map

3. Sunny Hills Land Use Plan

4, Legal Description of Subject Property
5. Summary of Infrastructure Analysis

Although it appears this property would never be developed if it remained in Storey County, | understand the
concern of "how does this benefit Storey County?" if the property is relocated outside of Storey County. Here
are a few ideas: (i) we could work on a land swap for property Storey finds desirable in adjacent counties, (ii)
the developer could provide commitments on what will be developed on the Sunny Hills property (thousands
of acres) remaining in Storey County; and/or (iii) it appears the development may have excess water rights
that could supplement water resources in this area of Storey County. Please consider these options or provide
us with any other ideas that you believe could mitigate the relocation of this property into Washoe County. |
am alsa more than willing to meet with your Commissioners, if necessary.

Finally, we do have a bill draft for this boundary line adjustment that is still in the drafting stages with the
Legislative Council Bureau. Once the bill is finalized it must be introduced within a short period of time (but
introduction on the legislative floor certainly does not guarantee a committee hearing). We obviously do not
plan on moving forward with a hearing without Storey's blessing, but | am at least hoping you will consent to
the bill being introduced while we are working on a compromise. Please let me know as saon as possible if

this is acceptable.

Thanks again, and we look forward to working with you,

Garrett



El - Garreft D. Gordon

Associate
Lewis and Roca LLP * Suite 410
50 West Liberty Street » Reno, Nevada 89501-1922
Directions to Building and Garage
Tel (775) 321-3420 « Fax (775) 321-5569
GGordon@LRLaw.com * www.LewisandRoca.com/Gordon

4
"

Please consider the environment befare printing this e-mail.

For more information about Lewis and Roca LLP, please go to wyww.lewisandroca.com.
Phoenix (602)262-5311 Reno (775)823-2900
Tucson (520)622-2090 Albuquerque (505)764-5400

Las Vcgas (702)949-8200  Silicon Valley (650)391-1380
"This message is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent

responsible tor delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you

have received this communication in error, please notify us immediately by replying to the sender of this E-Mail by retum E-Mail or by telephone.
In accordance with Internal Revenue Service Circular 230, we advise you that if this email contains any tax advice, such tax advice was not intended or written to be used, and it

cannot be used, by any taxpayer for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may bc imposed on the taxpayer.



_AWASHOE COUNTY

iy

\y & R -

sunny Hills’

/_Trade Area

WASHOE COUNTY
STOREY COUNTY




0002 10001 0
1

by a2 1]
QS0

v

b

edly apel ._.II\

Awne ) A8

AL

S|IIH Auuns




-~ isunny HillsEE Ridge Liney
Trade Area :




LEGAL DESCRIPTION
FOR POTENTIAL
SUNNY HILLS LAND TRADE

All that certain real property situate within Section One (13, Township Eighteen (18) North, Range
Twenty (20) East, Mount Diablo Meridian, and a portion of Section Six (6), Township Eighteen (18)
North, Range Twenty-One (21) Eust, Mount Diablo Meridian, Storey County, Nevada, being a Lots 39-62
of Record of Survey Map No. 44300, recorded May 3, 1979, and Lots 53-57 of Division of Land Map
No. 43954, recorded March 19, 1979, all in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, and being
more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of said Section One (1), as shown on said Record of
Survey Map No. 4430;

THENCE departing said northwest comner and along the north line of said Section, South 88°47'50" East
a distance of 2636.62 feet to the North One-Quarter comer of said Section;

THENCE continuing along said north line, South 89°05'48" East a distance of 2648.40 feet to the
Northeast comner of said Section;

THENCE departing said corner and along the north line of said Section Six (6), South 89°02'43" East a
distunce of 3452.57 feet to the North One-Quarter corner of said Section;

THENCE departing said corner and continuing along said north line, North 88°37'00" East a distance of
637.83 feet;

THENCE departing said north line, South 12°25'49" East a distance of 2504.99 feet;

THENCE South 02°01'41" West a distance of 671.51 feet;

THENCE South 04°57'57" East a distance of 1153.58 feet;

THENCE South 38°40'56" East a distance of 268.28 feet;

THENCE South 47°38'( 1" East a distance of 1133,28 feet to the Southeast corner of said Section Six (6);
THENCE departing said corner and along the south line of said Section, South 89°55'14" West a distance
of 5760.01 feet to the Southwest corner of said Section;

THENCE departing said corner and along the south line of Said Section One (1), North 87°49'56" West a
distance of 2589.86 feet to the South One-Quarter Corner of said Section;

THENCE departing said corner and continuing along said south line, South 89°38'28" West a distance of
2602.80 feet to the Southwest corner of said Section;

THENCE departing said corner and along the west line of said Section, North 00°28'08" West a distance
of 5305.40 feet Lo the POINT OF BEGINNING;

Containing 1,192.17 acres of land, more or less.
The basis of bearings for this description is identical to that as shown on Record of Survey Map No,

44300, recorded May 3, 1979, in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada.

Note: A field boundary survey was not conducted for the preparation of this legul description, and was
compiled using record data. This legul description is provided as a convenience and is not intended for
the prrpose of subdividing land not in conformance with Nevada Revised Stututes.

lof2



LEGAL DESCRIPTION

FOR POTENTIAL
SUNNY HILLS LAND TRADE
Prepared by:
Wood Rodgers, Inc.
5440 Reno Corporate Dr.

Reno, NV 89511

Kevin M. Almeter, P.L.S.
Nevada Certificate No. 19052

20f2



EXHIBIT POTENTIAL SUNNY HILLS LAND TRADE
PORTION OF SECTION 6, T .18 N., R. 21 E.

PLAT TO ACCOMP AND SECTION 1, T. 18 N.. R. 20 E. MD.M
DESCRIPTION STOREY COUNTY ~ NEVADA
0y @ STOREY CO. _
~ WASHOE CO.
N.T.S.
SUNNY HILLS RANCHOS
UNIT 2
LOTS 53 - &7
TOTAL AREA OF
- POTENTIAL
L o LAND TRADE ©0 -
g'k‘_‘ [,192.17 ACRES# LN
g[8
SUNNY HILLS RANCHOS =8
UNIT 1 |
LOTS 39 - 62 O«
o|=
L .
=P A5
TOREY cO. & ~ g~
STOREY CO. ~ ~
" WASHOE CO. g%*c\: m*:

wWooD RODGERS

DEVELOPING INNOVATIVE DEBIGN BOLUTIONS
5440 Reno Corporate Drive Tel 775.823.4068
SHEET 1 OF 1 Reno, NV 89511 Fax 775.823.4066




Comments from Sunny Hills Engineers

Sunny Hills Infrastructure

The Sunny Hills property lies in both Washoe and Storey Counties east of the South
Meadows area of the City of Reno. The Sunny Hills property located within Washoe
County is identified in the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan and it is included within the
Truckee Meadows Service Area (TMSA) in the City of Reno’s Sphere of Influence
(SOI). This area is planned to be served by the major infrastructure located within the
City of Reno and Washoe County.

Currently there is virtually no infrastructure in Storey County to support the Sunny Hills
property located there. Thc only utility in the vicinity is high power electrical lines that
extend across the property. However, the existing topography and proximity to existing
and future infrastructure facilities warrants moving that portion of Sunny Hills in Storey
County into Washoe County where that infrastructure is already planned and the
geography lends itself to extension of those services.

More specific descriptions of the infrastructure facilities available to serve Sunny Hills
are described below.

Roadways

There are no paved facilities located in Storey County near Sunny Hills. The closest
populated arcas in Storey County are Lockwood to the northeast and Virginia Highlands
to the southeast. By air, Sunny Hills is about 4 miles from both Lockwood and the
Virginia Highlands fire station. Road access to both of these areas are much further
distance wise via a series of unimproved jeep trails that are in various levels of disrepair.
By contrast, paved roadways and sewer utilities are located about 2 mile from the Sunny
Hills property boundary and a mile further to the Storey County boundary.

Sunny Hills will be served by the extension of South Meadows Parkway from the west.
This 4 lane east-west major arterial currently terminates just %2 milc west of the Sunny
Hills property boundary and connects directly to I-580. In addition, just % mile west of
the South Meadows Parkway terminus is the intersection with Veterans Parkway.
Veterans Parkway is a north-south major arterial that will ultimately connect Mount Rose
Highway to Sparks Boulevard and it is often referred to as the Tahoe-Pyramid Connector.

South Meadows Parkway will be extended directly into Sunny Hills and it will serve as
the backbone roadway for the property.

Water

There are no domestic water facilities located in Storey County near Sunny Hills.
Washoe County has two water storage tanks located directly adjacent to the Sunny Hills



property. One of these tank sites has a common property line with Sunny Hills. These
facilities can be used to provide water service to the property. These facilities and other
water facilities located upstream will require upsizing as the property develops but these
existing facilities will serve as the building blocks of water service to Sunny Hills.

Sewer

Sewer mains are located at the terminus of South Meadows Parkway and at Rio Wrangler
Road. Both locations will provide sewer service to Sunny Hills within Washoe County.
Extension of these facilitics can easily be extended to serve the Sunny Hills currently
property located in Storey County. It is important to note that the topography of the
Sunny Hills property lends itself to serve the entire area proposed to be moved into
Washoe County via gravity sewer mains. No sewer lift stations arc anticipated. This is
the most cost effective and efficient way to provide sewer to any area. Lower initial
capital costs and much lower long term maintenance costs, because the mechanical
systems and power consumption needed for sewer lift stations, will not exist.

Drainage

The watersheds associated with Sunny Hills will remain as they currently exist. A large
portion of the Sunny Hills property located in Storey County is within a closed basin.
Areas on the east side of Sunny Hills including a portion located in Washoe County
drains to watersheds that flow north toward Patrick. Areas on the west side of Sunny
Hills drain to watersheds flowing west to Steamboat Creek. It isn’t anticipated that these
watershed areas will change with a relocation of the County line.



Senate Bill No. 272—-Senator Kieckhefer
Joint Sponsors: Assemblymen Wheeler; and Livermore

CHAPTER..........

AN ACT relating to counties; providing for the revision of the
boundary line between Storey County and Washoe County;
and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

This bill provides for the revision of the boundary line between Storey County
and Washoe County upon the adoption of resolutions by the Board of County
Commissioners of Storey County and the Board of County Commissioners of
Washoe County approving the revision.

EXPLANATION — Matter in bolded italics is new, matter between brackets {omitted-material} is material to be omitted

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 243.340 is hereby amended to read as follows:

243340 1. There shall be a county, to be known as Washoe
County, to include all that part of the State of Nevada within the
boundaries described as follows: Beginning at the northwest corner
of Carson City, and running easterly along the northern boundary of
Carson City to the county boundary monument common to Washoe
County, Lyon County, Carson City and Storey County; thence N.
12°22'55” W. 3,137.70 feet to the section corner common to
sections 10, 11, 14 and 15, T. 16 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
easterly along the section line common to sections 11 and 14 to the
section corner common to sections 11, 12, 13 and 14, T. 16 N., R.
20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section line
common to sections 11 and 12 to the section corner common to
sections 1, 2, 11 and 12, T. 16 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
continuing northerly along the section line common to sections 1
and 2 to the east one-quarter corner of section 2; thence easterly
along the east-west one-quarter section line to the range line
common to R. 20 E. and R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly
along such range line to the township line common to T. 16 N. and
T. 17 N., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing northerly along the range
line to the section corner common to sections 25 and 36, T. 17 N,,
R. 20 E., and sections 30 and 31, T. 17 N, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M,;
thence continuing northerly along the range line to the section
corner common to sections 24 and 25, T. 17 N., R. 20 E., and
sections 19 and 30, T. 17 N., R. 21 E.,, M.D.B. & M.; thence



—Pr

continuing northerly along the range line to the section corner
common to sections 13 and 24, T. 17 N., R. 20 E., and sections 18
and 19, T. 17 N., R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly along the
section line common to sections 18 and 19 to the section corner
common to sections 17, 18, 19 and 20, T. 17 N., R. 21 E.,, M.D.B. &
M.; thence northerly along the section line common to sections 17
and 18 to the section corner common to sections 7, 8, 17 and 18, T.
17 N,, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along the section line
common to sections 7 and 18 to the south one-quarter corner of
section 7; thence northerly along the north-south one-quarter section
line to the one-quarter corner common to sections 6 and 7, T. 17 N.,
R. 21 E.,, M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along the section line
common to sections 6 and 7 to the range line common to R. 20 E.
and R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the range line to
the township line common to T. 17 N. and T. 18 N., M.D.B. & M.;
thence westerly along the township line to the south one-quarter
corner of section 36, T. 18 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
northerly along the north-south one-quarter section line to the one-
quarter corner common to sections 25 and 36, T. 18 N., R. 20 E.,
M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly along the section line common to
sections 25 and 36 to the range line common to R. 20 E. and R. 21
E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the range line to the
section corner common to sections 24 and 25, T. 18 N, R. 20 E.,
M.D.B. & M., and sections 19 and 30, T. 18 N., R. 21 E., M.D.B. &
M.; thence easterly along the section line common to sections 19
and 30 to the section corner common to sections 19, 20, 29 and 30,
T. 18 N, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section
line common to sections 19 and 20 to the section corner common to
sections 17, 18, 19 and 20, T. 18 N,, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
continuing northerly along the section line common to sections 17
and 18 to the section corner common to sections 7, 8, 17 and 18, T.
18 N, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing northerly along the
section line common to sections 7 and 8 to the section corner
common to sectlons 5,6,7and 8, T. 18 N,, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.;
thence fwes SO ’HH—Hne—wmmeﬁ—te—ﬁeeHena 6—&{%5—?
to-the-sech um—&n%r—wmnmw%w&mm—(x—and F-and-sections—Hand
12 SN R 20 MADB &M thenee-continning—westerly
along—the-seetion-tine-cam !}H!Hﬂ—ﬂ&&{iﬂl‘ﬁ-—FdH{H 2 to-the-seetion
ERFHEF—eaHNOR-to-sections - Fhoand 28N R_20- -
W—Q—B—&—M*—theﬂee—fmheﬁv—d%pﬁu—ﬂweHﬁHme—bmmmm—m
North 47°38°11” West a distance of 1133.28 feet;
thence North 38°40756” West a distance of 268.28 feet; thence
North 04°5757” West a distance of 1153.58 feet; thence North




= N

02°0141” East a distance of 671.51 feet; thence North 12°2549”
West a distance of 2504.99 feet to a point on the township line
common to T. 20 N. and T. 21 N.; thence westerly along said
township line to the section corner common to sections 1 and 2, T.
I8 N., R. 20 E., and sections 35 and 36, T. 19 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B.
& M.; thence continuing northerly along the section line common to
sections 35 and 36 to the section corner common to sections 25, 26,
35 and 36, T. 19 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing
northerly along the section line common to sections 25 and 26 to the
section corner common to sections 23, 24, 25 and 26, T. 19 N.,, R.
20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing northerly along the section
line common to sections 23 and 24, to the section corner common to
sections 13, 14, 23 and 24, T. 19 N, R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
continuing northerly along the section line common to sections 13
and 14 to the section corner common to sections 11, 12, 13 and 14,
T. 19 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly along the section
line common to sections 12 and 13 to the centerline of the Truckee
River (as described in paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NRS
243.335); thence down such centerline of the Truckee River to its
lower crossing; thence S. 53°06°03” E. to a point in the Immigrant
Road further described as being a 1 1/46-inch iron pipe marked
Storey, Lyon and Washoe; thence S. 27°53°57” W., 2,021.40 feet
along the easterly line of Storey County to a point in the section line
common to sections 3 and 10, T. 20 N., R. 24 E., M.D.B. & M,;
thence easterly along the section lines common to sections 3 and 10
to the easterly boundary of the Pyramid Lake Reservation, thence
northeasterly along said Pyramid Lake Reservation Boundary to the
section line common to sections 26 and 35, T. 21 N., R. 24 E.;
thence easterly along the section line common to sections 25, 26, 35
and 36, T. 21 N., R. 24 E.; thence continuing easterly along the
section line common to sections 29, 30, 31 and 32, T. 21 N., R. 25
E. to the section corner common to sections 28, 29, 32 and 33, T. 21
N., R. 25 E.; thence northerly along the section lines common to
sections 20, 21, 28 and 29 to the section corner common to sections
16, 17,20 and 21, T. 21 N., R. 25 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly
along the section line common to sections 16 and 21 to the section
corner common to sections 15, 16, 21 and 22, T. 21 N., R. 25 E.,
M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section lines common to
sections 3, 4, 9, 10, 15 and 16, to the township line common to T. 21
N. and T. 22 N., M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along the township
line to the section corner common to sections 33 and 34, T. 22 N.,
R. 25 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section lines
common to sections 9, 10, 15, 16, 21, 22, 27, 28, 33 and 34 to the



—4-

one-quarter corner common to sections 9 and 10, T. 22 N,, R. 25 E,,
M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along the one-quarter section line to
the one-quarter corner common to sections 8 and 9, T. 22 N., R. 25
E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section lines common
to sections 4, 5, 8 and 9 to the township line common to T. 22 N.
and T. 23 N., M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along the township line
to the section line common to sections 31 and 32, T. 23 N.,, R. 25 E,,
M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section lines common to
sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 17, 18, 19, 20, 29, 30, 31 and 32 to the township
lines common to T. 23 N., T. 24 N., M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly
along the township line to the range line common to R. 24 E. and R.
25 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the range line to the
40th degree of north latitude; thence westerly along the 40th degree
of north latitude to the range line common to R. 23 E. and R. 24 E.,
M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the common range lines
continuously through each successive township to the Oregon line;
thence westerly along the Oregon line to the California line; thence
southerly along the California line to the place of beginning.

2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in subsection 1:

(a) The common boundary line between Carson City and
Washoe County is redefined on July 1, 1969, and that boundary line
is hereby established as provided in section 1.030 of chapter 213,
Statutes of Nevada 1969, as amended.

(b) The common boundary line between Storey County and
Washoe County is redefined on April 21, 1973, and that boundary
line is established as provided in subsection 1 and NRS 243.335.

Sec. 1.5. NRS 243.340 is hereby amended to read as follows:

243340 1. There shall be a county, to be known as Washoe
County, to include all that part of the State of Nevada within the
boundaries described as follows: Beginning at the northwest corner
of Carson City, and running easterly along the northern boundary of
Carson City to the county boundary monument common to Washoe
County, Lyon County, Carson City and Storey County; thence N.
12°22'55” W. 3,137.70 feet to the section corner common to
sections 10, 11, 14 and 15, T. 16 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
easterly along the section line common to sections 11 and 14 to the
section corner common to sections 11, 12, 13 and 14, T. 16 N., R.
20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section line
common to sections 11 and 12 to the section corner common to
sections 1, 2, 11 and 12, T. 16 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
continuing northerly along the section line common to sections 1
and 2 to the east one-quarter corner of section 2; thence easterly
along the east-west one-quarter section line to the range line



_5_

common to R. 20 E. and R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly
along such range line to the township line common to T. 16 N. and
T. 17 N., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing northerly along the range
line to the section corner common to sections 25 and 36, T. 17 N.,
R. 20 E., and sections 30 and 31, T. 17 N, R. 21 E,, M.D.B. & M.;
thence continuing northerly along the range line to the section
corner common to sections 24 and 25, T. 17 N, R. 20 E., and
sections 19 and 30, T. 17 N., R. 21 E.,, M.D.B. & M.; thence
continuing northerly along the range line to the section corner
common to sections 13 and 24, T. 17 N., R. 20 E., and sections 18
and 19, T. 17 N, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly along the
section line common to sections 18 and 19 to the section corner
common to sections 17, 18, 19 and 20, T. 17 N, R. 21 E,, M.D.B. &
M.; thence northerly along the section line common to sections 17
and 18 to the section corner common to sections 7, 8, 17 and 18, T.
17N, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along the section line
common to sections 7 and 18 to the south one-quarter corner of
section 7; thence northerly along the north-south one-quarter section
line to the one-quarter corner common to sections 6 and 7, T. 17 N.,
R. 21 E.,, M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along the section line
common to sections 6 and 7 to the range line common to R. 20 E.
and R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the range line to
the township line common to T. 17 N. and T. 18 N.,, M.D.B. & M.;
thence westerly along the township line to the south one-quarter
corner of section 36, T. 18 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
northerly along the north-south one-quarter section line to the one-
quarter corner common to sections 25 and 36, T. 18 N., R. 20 E.,
M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly along the section line common to
sections 25 and 36 to the range line common to R. 20 E. and R. 21
E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the range line to the
section corner common to sections 24 and 25, T. 18 N, R. 20 E.,
M.D.B. & M., and sections 19 and 30, T. 18 N., R. 21 E.,, M.D.B. &
M.; thence easterly along the section line common to sections 19
and 30 to the section corner common to sections 19, 20, 29 and 30,
T. 18 N, R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section
line common to sections 19 and 20 to the section corner common to
sections 17, 18, 19 and 20, T. 18 N., R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
continuing northerly along the section line common to sections 17
and 18 to the section corner common to sections 7, 8, 17 and 18, T.
18 N., R. 21 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing northerly along the
section line common to sections 7 and 8 to the section corner
common to sections 5, 6, 7 and 8, T. 18 N,, R. 21 E.,, M.D.B. & M,;
thence westerly along the section line common to sections 6 and 7 to



—6—

the section corner common to sections 6 and 7 and sections 1 and
12, T. 18 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing westerly
along the section line common to sections 1 and 12 to the section
corner common to sections 1, 2, 11 and 12, T. 18 N., R. 20 E,,
M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the section line common to
sections 1 and 2 to the section corner common to sections 1 and 2
and sections 35 and 36, T. 19 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
continuing northerly along the section line common to sections 35
and 36 to the section corner common to sections 25, 26, 35 and 36,
T. 19 N,, R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing northerly along
the section line common to sections 25 and 26 to the section corner
common to sections 23, 24, 25 and 26, T. 19 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. &
M.; thence continuing northerly along the section line common to
sections 23 and 24, to the section corner common to sections 13, 14,
23 and 24, T. 19 N., R. 20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence continuing
northerly along the section line common to sections 13 and 14 to the
section corner common to sections 11, 12, 13 and 14, T. 19 N., R.
20 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly along the section line common
to sections 12 and 13 to the centerline of the Truckee River (as
described in paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NRS 243.335); thence
down such centerline of the Truckee River to the section line
common to sections 10 and 11, T. 19 N, R. 21 E.,, M.D.B. & M.;
thence continuing northerly along the section line common to
sections 10 and 11 to the intersection of the section line common
to sections 10 and 11 with the southern boundary of the right-of-
way of Interstate Highway No. 80; thence continuing
northeasterly along the southern boundary of the right-of-way of
Interstate Highway No. 80 to the intersection of the southern
boundary of the right-of-way of Interstate Highway No. 80 with
the north-south centerline of section 32, T. 20 N., R. 22 E., M.D.B.
& M.; thence continuing southerly along the centerline of section
32 to the centerline of the Truckee River, as described in
paragraph (a) of subsection 2 of NRS 243.335; thence down such
centerline to its lower crossing; thence S. 53°06°03” E. to a point in
the Immigrant Road further described as being a 1 1/46-inch iron
pipe marked Storey, Lyon and Washoe; thence S. 27°53’57” W.,
2,021.40 feet along the easterly line of Storey County to a point in
the section line common to sections 3 and 10, T. 20 N., R. 24 E.,
M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly along the section lines common to
sections 3 and 10 to the easterly boundary of the Pyramid Lake
Reservation, thence northeasterly along said Pyramid Lake
Reservation Boundary to the section line common to sections 26 and
35, T. 21 N., R. 24 E.; thence easterly along the section line



_7_

common to sections 25, 26, 35 and 36, T. 21 N., R. 24 E.; thence
continuing easterly along the section line common to sections 29,
30, 31 and 32, T. 21 N., R. 25 E. to the section corner common to
sections 28, 29, 32 and 33, T. 21 N., R. 25 E.; thence northerly
along the section lines common to sections 20, 21, 28 and 29 to the
section corner common to sections 16, 17, 20 and 21, T. 21 N, R.
25 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence easterly along the section line common
to sections 16 and 21 to the section corner common to sections 15,
16, 21 and 22, T. 21 N., R. 25 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly
along the section lines common to sections 3, 4, 9, 10, 15 and 16, to
the township line common to T. 21 N. and T. 22 N., M.D.B. & M.;
thence westerly along the township line to the section corner
common to sections 33 and 34, T. 22 N., R. 25 E., M.D.B. & M,;
thence northerly along the section lines common to sections 9, 10,
15,16, 21, 22, 27, 28, 33 and 34 to the one-quarter corner common
to sections 9 and 10, T. 22 N., R. 25 E., M.D.B. & M.; thence
westerly along the one-quarter section line to the one-quarter corner
common to sections 8 and 9, T. 22 N, R. 25 E.,, M.D.B. & M,;
thence northerly along the section lines common to sections 4, 5, 8
and 9 to the township line common to T. 22 N. and T. 23 N,,
M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along the township line to the section
line common to sections 31 and 32, T. 23 N., R. 25 E.,, M.DB. &
M.; thence northerly along the section lines common to sections 5,
6, 7,8, 17, 18, 19, 20, 29, 30, 31 and 32 to the township lines
common to T. 23 N., T. 24 N., M.D.B. & M.; thence westerly along
the township line to the range line common to R. 24 E. and R. 25 E.,
M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the range line to the 40th
degree of north latitude; thence westerly along the 40th degree of
north latitude to the range line common to R. 23 E. and R. 24 E,
M.D.B. & M.; thence northerly along the common range lines
continuously through each successive township to the Oregon line;
thence westerly along the Oregon line to the California line; thence
southerly along the California line to the place of beginning.

2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in subsection 1:

(a) The common boundary line between Carson City and
Washoe County is redefined on July 1, 1969, and that boundary line
is hereby established as provided in section 1.030 of chapter 213,
Statutes of Nevada 1969, as amended.

(b) The common boundary line between Storey County and
Washoe County is redefined on April 21, 1973, and that boundary
line is established as provided in subsection 1 and NRS 243.335.

Sec. 2. 1. All taxes and pledged revenue in existence before
July 1, 2013, must not be directly or indirectly modified in such a



—8—

manner as to impair adversely any outstanding obligations of Storey
County, until all those obligations have been discharged in full or
provision for their payment and redemption has been fully made.

2. All taxes and pledged revenue in existence before July 1,
2013, must not be directly or indirectly modified in such a manner
as to impair adversely any outstanding obligations of Washoe
County, until all those obligations have been discharged in full or
provision for their payment and redemption has been fully made.

Sec. 3. 1. This section and section 2 of this act become
effective upon passage and approval.

2. Section 1 of this act becomes effective only upon the
adoption, on or after July 1, 2013, and on or before June 30, 2015,
of a resolution by the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County and the Board of County Commissioners of Washoe
County, respectively, approving the revisions described in the
amendatory provisions of section 1 of this act to the boundary line
between the respective Counties.

3. Section 1.5 of this act becomes effective only upon the
adoption, on or after July 1, 2013, and on or before June 30, 2015,
of a resolution by the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County and the Board of County Commissioners of Washoe
County, respectively, approving the revisions described in the
amendatory provisions of section 1.5 of this act to the boundary line
between the respective Counties.



STOREY COUNTY RESOLUTION 14-405

Declining to approve a boundary line adjustment between Storey
County and Washoe County pursuant to provisions in Section 1 of
Senate Bill (SB) 272 of the 2013 Legislative Session

Whereas, the Nevada State Legislature enacted Senate Bill 272 during its
2013 Legislative Session authorizing a revision of the boundary line
between Storey County and Washoe County upon the adoption of
resolutions by the Storey and Washoe County Boards of Commissioners;
and

Whereas, Section 1 of Senate Bill 272 identifies land now in Storey
County that would move in to Washoe County to facilitate development,
an area more commonly referred to as “Sunny Hills”; and

Whereas, any action on Section 1 is completely independent of action
taken on land identified in Section 1.5 of SB 272.; and

Whereas, Project proponents for “Sunny Hills” have approached the
Storey County Commissioners, Staff and our Citizens in an effort to gain
approval from the Board of County Commissioners as authorized in
Section 1 of SB 272; and

Whereas, Although a limited number of voices of the citizens of Storey
County have expressed some interest in negotiating a boundary line
adjustment, the overwhelming majority have expressed strong and deeply
held beliefs that facilitating development in this area will be a detriment to
their quality of life; and

Whereas, There is no method provided in Nevada Revised Statutes to
allow financial compensation between Counties and/or to our citizens to
compensate for lost revenue and degraded quality of life.

Now Therefore, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County
hereby resolve to decline any consideration of a Resolution as provided
for in Section 1 of Senate Bill 272 of the 2013 Nevada Legislative Session,
pursuant to Section 3(2) of that act, to the boundary line between Storey
County and Washoe County.



Passed, Approved and Adopted this 1% day of July, 2014, by Storey
County Honorable Board of Commissioners.

Marshall McBride, Chairman, Date
Storey County Board of Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk Date



STOREY COUNTY RESOLUTION 14-406

A Resolution rescinding approval of Resolution 14-397 placing an

advisory question on the November 2014 General Election ballot

regarding a boundary line adjustment between Storey County and
Washoe County in area more commonly referred to as “Sunny Hills”.

If approved, this item also provides notice to the clerk of the ballot
guestion withdrawal by the Board.

Whereas, On May 6, 2014, the Storey County Board of Commissioners
voted unanimously to approve Storey County Resolution 14-397; and

Whereas, Resolution 14-397 resolved to place an advisory question on
the November 2014 General Election ballot regarding passage of a future
Resolution pertaining to Section 1 of Senate Bill 272 which specifically
identifies land now in Storey County that would move in to Washoe
County to facilitate development, an area more commonly referred to as
“Sunny Hills”; and

Whereas, Project proponents for “Sunny Hills” have approached the
Storey County Commissioners, Staff and Citizens in an effort to gain
approval from the Board of County Commissioners as authorized in
Section 3(2) of SB 272; and

Whereas, while some citizens of Storey County have expressed interest in
negotiating a boundary line adjustment, the overwhelming majority have
expressed strong and deeply held beliefs that facilitating development in
this area will be a detriment to their quality of life and pose greatly
increased wild land fire risks; and

Whereas, There is no method provided in Nevada Revised Statutes to
allow financial compensation between Counties and/or to our citizens to
compensate for lost revenue and degraded quality of life; and

Whereas, the Storey County Board of Commissioners are scheduled to
consider Resolution 14-405 which would decline to approve the boundary
line adjustment referenced above; and,

Whereas, approval of Resolution 14-405 would eliminate any applicability
of the results of a General Election advisory question.



Now, Therefore, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey County
hereby resolve to rescind Storey County Resolution 14-397. This item
also provides notice to the clerk of the ballot question withdrawal
by the Board.

Passed, Approved and Adopted this 1% day of July, 2014, by Storey
County Honorable Board of Commissioners.

Marshall McBride, Chairman, Date
Storey County Board of. Commissioners -

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk Date



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 1, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Resolution 14-404 resolving to commend and honor Jonathan Dockins as a true and
honorable Virginia City Hero.

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve Resolution 14-404 honoring Jonathan Dockins as a true and
honorable Virginia City Hero.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: County Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 8§47-0968

4. Staff Summary: See Page 2

5. Supporting materials:

A. Draft of Resolution 14-404
B. Pictures of Jonathan provided courtesy of the Comstock Chronicle and County Photo File

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
<24 —County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[ Approved with Modifications
[

Continued

] Approved
] Denied

e
e —



Agenda Item No.
Staff summary (continued):

A brave young boy from Jackson, Missouri, Jonathan Dockins has had a tough start in his early life.
Born with a congenital heart defect, Jonathan already has endured ten open-heart surgeries in his 8 years
and faces many more as he grows. He is your typical American boy, dreaming of growing up someday
and driving a train. Fortunately, his story has inspired many across our Country to reach out to help
make his dreams come true. First, the incredible folks at the Make-A-Wish Foundation listened to
Jonathan’s story and put together a plan to give Jonathan the memory of a lifetime. They reached out to
Ken Marty, an Amtrak Engineer and President of the West Coast Railroaders Group. Ken is another
local hero in his own right, volunteering his summer days off to provide fire patrol support to our V& T
Railroad, but that is a story for another day. Ken contacted his boss, the President of Amtrak, and told
him about Jonathan. Amtrak developed a plan to have Jonathan welcomed in Sacramento and then
taken to the awaiting Eastbound train to Reno and beyond. Jonathan was able to realize his dream,
boldly piloting the passenger train thru the tunnels and heights of Donner Summit and into Reno last
Friday, June 20™. But Ken didn’t stop there. He also reached out to our very own, Tom Gray and the
Virginia and Truckee Railroad who quickly put in place his own plan for J onathan First, a limousine
ride from Reno to Virginia City for a 2-night stay. And starting early Saturday morning, Jonathan was
in charge of the moming run of the V & T long-line, traveling down to Carson City for the day’s run.
Arriving at the Carson Eastgate Depot, after making sure all passengers were safely on board, Jonathan
adjourned to the Gold Hill car to mingle with the passengers. Upon arrival at the Virginia City Depot,
he was greeted by Virginia City’s own, Living Legends as well as local government tourism officials.
Jonathan then set off with his family, to enjoy the sights and sounds of our historic town. At the
appointed hour, V & T Engine #18 blew its whistle and it was time to board for the return trip to Carson
City and the conclusion of his dream. But, because of incredible people like Ken Marty, his dream
wasn’t quite over. Ken’s group, the West Coast Railroader’s, bring their own small track equipment, or
speeders as they’re called, and follow the long-line train every weekend, watching for sparks that might
ignite brush fires. Short of operating both antique steam and Amtrak engines all in one weekend, there
is nothing to compare to the feeling of riding the rails on an open air speeder. Jonathan and his family
got to experience that first hand by riding in a speeder on their return to Virginia City. Along his
incredible journey, Jonathan met Ken’s son Tyler and they developed a friendship based on their shared
passion for all things railroad. At the end of the day, his visit was celebrated just as any 8 year old boy
would want, with a pizza party. Many great local businesses and people, including Governor
Sandoval, contributed greatly to making Jonathan’s dreams come true with countless donations of
meals, overnight stays and other much needed support. They, and our entire small community were
rewarded with the joy of Jonathan’s smiles and energy and he his has truly enlightened the lives of
many. Jonathan Dockins is a true and honorable Virginia City Hero.



RESOLUTION NO. 14-404
A RESOLUTION HONORING JONATHAN DOCKINS

WHEREAS, Jonathan Dockins has, in eight years of life to date,
mounted a brave and heroic battle overcoming great challenges; and

WHEREAS, Jonathan is an avid fan of trains and railroading; and
WHEREAS, Jonathan has long dreamed of running a real train; and
WHEREAS, Tom Gray and the fine folks of Make-A-Wish Foundation,
the Virginia & Truckee Railroad, the West Coast Railroaders Group and
Amtrak joined to help Jonathan’s dreams come true; and

WHEREAS, the Storey County Board of Commissioners congratulate
Jonathan for his successful accomplishments of bringing both the
Amtrak and Virginia & Truckee trains in on time.

THEREFORE IT BE KNOWN to all present that the Board of County

Commissioners of Storey County do hereby resolve to commend and
honor Jonathan Dockins as a true and honorable Virginia City Hero on

this 1% day of July 2014.

PASSED and ADOPTED the 1% day of July , 2014, by the following
AYES: McBride, Gilman and Sjovangen

NAYS:

ABSENT:

And Signed:

Marshall McBride, Chairman

L. Lance Gilman, Vice-Chairman

Bill Sjovangen, Commissioner

Attested:

Vanessa A. Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer


















Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 1, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Resolution 14-393 Approval of Tax Rate Levy for the 2014/2015 year.

2. Recommended motion

3. Prepared by: Jessie Fain for Hugh Gallagher
Department: Commission/Comptroller Telephone:

4. Staff summary:
5. Supporting materials: Resolution 14-393

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

wty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No.



RESOLUTION 14-393

TAX RATE LEVY

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners in and for the County of Storey,
State of Nevada did hold a public hearing on the 2014/2015 tentative budget for
Storey County and,

WHEREAS, the resources, expenditures and required tax rates were
reviewed and approved at that public hearing and,

WHEREAS, the approved resources, expenditures and tax rates were
submitted in the 2014-2015 final budget for the County of Storey, State of Nevada,

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of
Commissioners in and for the County of Storey, State of Nevada in accordance with
NRS 361.460, intends to levy the following tax rates following certification by the
Nevada Tax Commission.

GENERAL 1.7719
INDIGENT MEDICAL 0100
INDIGENT ACCIDENT 0150
YOUTH SERVICE 0045
CAPITAL ACQUISITION 0500

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 474 .5446

TOTAL COUNTY 2.3960

REFERENCE ONLY

SCHOOL OPERATING 7500
SCHOOL DEBT 1447
STATE 1700

TOTAL TAX RATE 3.4607



RESOLUTION 14-393

Passed and Adopted this 1st day of July 2014, by the Board of County
Commissioners consisting of three members.

THOSE VOTING AYE:
THOSE VOTING NAY:
STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS
Marshall McBride, Chairman
ATTEST:

CLERK TO THE BOARD



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/01/14 Estimate of time required: 15 min,

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modification and extension of
Collective Bargaining Agreement between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey
County Sheriff's Office Employee Association/Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3
(Union).

2. Recommended motion. Approve tentative agreement between Employer and Union as
presented by staff,

3, Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and Article 1 of the Bargaining Agreement between the

Employer and the Union, the existing 2011-2014 Agreement is proposed to be modified as
tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Provided in closed session per NRS 288.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_/Pﬁ{Dcpartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

4| | 0unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[E——

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/01/14 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modifications to Articles 46 (Benefits
Insurance) and 47(Retirement) of the existing 2013-2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
between Storey County (Employer) and the Storey County Employees’ Association
AFSCME Local Union Comstock Chapter (Union).

2. Recommended motion. Approve tentative agreement between Employer and Union as
presented by staff.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4, Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288, and Articles 46 and 54 of the Bargaining Agreement
between the Employer and the Union, management proposes to the Board of
Commissioners amendments to Articles 46 (Benefits Insurance) and 47 (Retirement) of the
existing 2013-2016 Agreement that will create conforming conditions with the Affordable
Care Act (ACA) and comply with 2014 bargaining reopener provisions in the Agreement.

5. Supporting materials: Provided in closed session per NRS 288.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
_/_'ﬁf_ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

(_MManager Other agency review: -

9, Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—

Agenda Item No.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 1, 2014 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Zone Map Amendment 2014-005. By Comstock Mining Inc., and Northern Comstock,
LLC, in Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada. The applicant requests a Zone Map
Amendment in order to change the zoning of fourteen parcels (Assessor Parcel Numbers:
002-122-01, 002-122-02, 002-142-01, 002-142-02, 002-142-03, 002-141-16, 002-141-03,
002-151-01, 002-151-05, 002-151-06, 002-151-02, 002-151-03, 002-151-04, and 002-161-
01) from Commercial-Residential (CR) to Special Planning Review (SPR).

2. Recommended motion: Recommended motion of approval.

3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144
4. Staff summary: The Applicants request a Zone Map Amendment to amend the Official Storey
County Zone Map of fourteen parcels currently zoned Commercial-Residential to the

proposed Special Planning Review zone (see Zone Map Amendment Staff Report
attached).

5. Supporting materials: Staff Report #2014-005, exhibits and appendixes.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.



STOREY COUNTY ¢
PLANNING DEPARTMENT -

Storey County Courthouse

26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone (775) 847-1144 - Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

0 u |
To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners
From: Storey County Planning Department
Meeting Date: July 1,2014 at 10am

Meeting Location:  Storey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Case: 2014-005 CMI Zone Map Amendment

Applicants: Comstock Mining, Inc. & Northern Comstock, LLC

Property Owners:  Comstock Mining, Inc. & Northern Comstock, LLC

Property Location: Fourteen properties located in the south section of Gold Hill along the State Route
342 corridor. (Assessor Parcel Numbers: 002-122-01, 002-122-02, 002-142-01, 002-
142-02, 002-142-03, 002-141-16, 002-141-03, 002-151-01, 002-151-05, 002-151-06,
002-151-02, 002-151-03, 002-151-04, 002-161-01).

Staff Contact: Dessie Redmond, Planner & Austin Osborne, Senior Planner

Figures: Figure 1-Vicinity Map; Figure 2-Zoning Map; Figure 3-Site Plan; Figure 4-Existing
Zoning; Figure 5-Proposed Zoning; Figure 6-Abutting Land Parcels; Figure
7-Pictometry Images Key; Figures 8 through 12-Pictometry Images; Figure 13-
100-Year Flood Plain

Tables: Table 1-Parcel Information; Comparison Table 2-Allowed Uses; Comparison Table
3-Uses Subject to a SUP; Table 4-SPR Suffix Designations; Table 5-Land Use
Compatibility; Comparison Table 6-Regulations

Appendixes: Appendix 1-Letter and Map Submitted by Applicants, Appendix 2-Assessor Parcel
Maps, Apendix 3-Email from D Long

Guiding Documents: Storey County Code, Sections 17.03.220 Zone map amendments and zone text
amendments, 17.08 Zones Generally, 17.30 Commercial-Residential, 17.44 Special
Planning Review and the Storey County Master Plan

Request: The Applicants request a Zone Map Amendment to amend the Official Storey County
Zoning Map of fourteen parcels currently zoned Commercial-Residential to the
proposed Special Planning Review zone.

r 0
Staff Report - 2014-005 Background & Analysis



= Property Boundayies
County Boundary

Figure 1 - Vicinity Map

Figure 2 - Zoning Map

Tn'\.-"il'giniu City

m

m Carson City

1. BACKGROUND &
ANALYSIS

1.1 Site Location and Characteristics

The subject properties are located in

the south section of Gold Hill along

the State Route 342 (SR 342) corridor.
Virginia City is approximately one and
one-half miles to the north and Carson
City is approximately 14 miles to the
southwest (Figure 1 - Vicinity Map).The
14 subject parcels are currently zoned
Commercial-Residential (CR) (Figure

2 - Zoning Map).

Figure 3 - Site Plan (page 3) shows the
Applicants properties in relation to the
county line and the SR 342 corridor.
Table 1 - Parcel Information, (page

3) lists the Assessor Parcel Numbers
(APNSs), the property owner, the current
zone and the proposed zone for each
parcel of the proposed Zone Amendment
Map.

1.2 Zone Map Amendment Request

The Applicants propose to change 14
parcels of land to the Special Planning
Review (SPR) zone. The abutting zones
are Forestry (F), CR or SPR. The SR
342 right-of-way (ROW) also abuts all
14 parcels (Figure 2 - Zoning Map).

The Applicants (Comstock Mining, Inc.
& Northern Comstock, LLC) are the
property owners of all 14 parcels. The
Storey County Code (SCC) Section
17.03.220 (B) expiains that a property
owner can initiate amendments to the
official zoning district map by filing
with the director a signed complete
application, accompanied by the
necessary fee and application materials
including all evidence and facts
required. The Applicants have submitted
the required documents for a Zone Map

a

=,
Staff Report - 2014-005

Background & Analysis



Table 1 - Parcel Information
# APN Owner Current Zone | Requested Zone
i o.¥ile i C.il\ 1] 002-122-01| WNorthern Comstock LLC CR SPR
= T 2| 002-122-02 | Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR
3| 002-142-01 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR
4| 002-142-02 | Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR
5| 002-142-03 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR
6] 002-141-16 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR
7| 002-141-03 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR
8| 002-151-01 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR
9| 002-151-02 | Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR
10| 002-151-03 Comstack Mining Inc CR SPR
11] 002-151-05 | Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR
12| 002-151-06 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR
13| 002-151-04 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR
14§ 002-161-01 Comstock Minin_g Inc CR SPR

I o Carson City

Pareel Fines
m Propenty’ Boundaries
Couniy Boundany

Figure 3 - Site Plan

Lyon
County

Amendment application that proposes to change 14 parcels zoned CR to the SPR zone. Figure 4 - Existing
Zoning and Figure 5 - Proposed Zoning (page 4) reflects the requested Zone Map Amendment.

1.3 Purpose and Intent of the CR Zone and the SPR Zone

The existing zoning for the subject parcels is CR. SCC 17.30.015 Purpose and intent states:
“The commercial-residential zone is intended to serve as a community focal point and provide for a center
of mixed uses including single-family and multi-family residences which are integrated with commercial
businesses, culture and entertainment amenities, and uses related to tourism. It is also intended to become
a transportation center in the form of a destination for vehicular, pubic transit, and rail traffic supporting all
allowable uses. In general, the zone provides for centers and uses of regional importance and provides an

. " . . . . d resi ..
integrated and attractive environment for visitors and residents. It is intended to be

an area OFh‘. h inta

Qitys

Ll LISy

uses in which a full range of public facilities (including water, sewer, schools, law enforcement, fire protection,
etc.) will generally be focused in accordance with the county master plan and connected to the immediate

surrounding residential uses.”

The proposed zoning for the subject parcels is SPR. SCC 17.44.010 Purpose and intent states:
“The SPR special planning review zone is intended to provide protections to current mining and milling and
the historical remnants within American Flat, Gold Hill, and Virginia City. It provides mechanisms by which
remnants of historical mining and milling are preserved. It provides for an environment that remains suitable for
current and future mining and milling practices when findings of fact show no substantial impact to surrounding
uses and the community. Preserving remnants of historical mining and milling extends to permanent historic

]

o
Staff Report - 2014-005

Background & Analysis




Zones

CR - Commercial-Residential
SPR - Special Planning Review
I - Forestry

| —

*Figure 5 - Proposed Zoning (GIS Image)

*GIS provides Staff with accurate imagery but the zoning layer is not precise. Therefore, GIS imagery is used as a guide to understand parcels. It is not used as a tool for an
exact replication of Official Storey County Zoning Map.
-0

:: -
Staff Report - 2014-005 Background & Analysis




structures, cemeteries, mine dumps, and other artifacts existing at or predating the year 1942, and
remaining cultural landscapes that are identified in the county master plan as needing special attention
when land use are proposed.”

1.4 Abutting Land Parcels and Property Owners

The subject properties are mostly surrounded by vacant Bureau of Land Management (BLM) land and
other vacant land (Figure 6 - Abutting Land Parcels). Property owners of the abutting vacant properties,
along with BLM and other property owners in the area have been notified regarding the proposed Zone

& o "
FXSHng
wilnthe

vacant

Vacant

dennt

BLM

#

" County Boundary
_ Parcel Lines
Ll .
" Praperty Boundaries
BEN

AENisting
« Mining
Activity

Vacant Land

Existing dining Actvity

*Figure 6 - Abutting Land Parcels (Pictometry Image)

*Pictometry provides Staff with accurate imagery but the parcel overlay is not precise. Therefore, Pictometry imagery is used as a guide to understand parcels. It is not used

as a tool for an exact replication of Storey County Assessor parcel maps.
0

Background & Analysis

n,
Staff Report - 2014-005



\ Map Amendment. Other existing uses in the
surrounding area include mining activities
such as CMI’s Lucerne Resource Area which
includes the Lucerne and Justice mining pits.

1.5 Pictometry Images

To understand the lay of the land and

get different perspectives of the subject
properties included in the proposed Zone
Map Amendment, Staff prepared Pictometry*
images of the subject properties. Figure

7 - Pictometry Image Key is a map with a
corresponding number for each of the subject
properties. Figures 8 - 12 (pages 6-8) display
Pictometry images with the corresponding
numbers on the Pictometry Image Key.
These images show the relationship between
the subject properties, SR 342 and adjacent
lands. They also show that the majority of the
subject parcels of land are vacant, as well as
the majority of the abutting parcels of land.

Pareél Lines

AT ,11“1_ Et— b &
nd surrounding area.

*Figure 8 - Pictometry image of subject propertics a
*Pictometry provides Staff with accurate imagery but the parcel overlay is not precise. Therefore, Pictometry imagery is used as a guide to understand parcels. It is not used

as a tool for an exact replication of Storey County Assessor parcel maps.
a

=,

Staff Report - 2014-005 Background & Analysis



Parcell ines.
peess ['rOperty Houn

*Figure 10 - Pictometry image of subject properties and surrounding area.

*Pictometry provides Staff with accurate imagery but the parcel overlay is not precise. Therefore, Pictometry imagery is used as a guide to understand parcels. It is not used
as a tool for an exact replication of Storey County Assessor parcel maps.

[n:
Staff Report - 2014-005 Background & Ana



*Pictometry provides Stafl' with accurate imagery but the parcel overlay is not precise, Therefore, Pictomelry imagery is used as a guide to understand parcels, 1t is not used
as a tool for an exact replication of Storey County Assessor parcel maps.
**The county line contained herein is approximate. Pictometry provides Staff with accurate imagery but the parcel overlay is not precise. Therefore, Pictometry imagery is
used as a guide to understand parcels. [t is not used as a tool for an exact replication of parcel maps.
=, O
Staff Report - 2014-005 Background & Analysis




Comparison Table 2 - Allowed Uses Comparison Table 3 - Uses Subject to a SUP
Use CR | SPR Use CR [ SPR
1|Retail
5 Cztr:ImerciaI : 1|Structures exceeding 45' (H) or less than 25'(W) X
3|Personal Services X 2|Recreational vehicle (RV) parks X
4]|Boarding Accommodations X 3|Regional stores and shopping centers X
7 IS & IR 4 4|Automotive washing and detailing X
6|Recreation X
7|Public Facilities x | x 5|Automotive services X
8|Helipads X X 6|Casinos and gaming establishments X
9|Crisis care, temporary X X 71Golf courses "
10|Libraries, Governmental Offices X X " 4
111 Education Facilities & H 8|Fairgrounds, rodeo arenas, etc. X
12|Highway rest areas, picnicking areas, parks, playgrounds X 9|Outdoor veterinary service X
13|Park lots and structures X 10|{Amusement parks X
14|General Services X e
15| Congregational Establishments - 11|Facilities that use outdoor sets and props X
16|Agricultural uses x | x 12|Fortune teller X
17|Horticultural uses X 13|Race tracks X
18| Other uses similar to Ag X 14|Facilities for the use of Radio Controlled vehicles X
19|Residential {SF) X X h gt
20|Residential (MF) 5 15|Healthcare facilities X
21|Residential (accessory) x | x 16|Crisis care uses X
22 Mhalr:jufactured Home X 17|Educational facilities x | x
23| Child care (4 children or less) X X -
> a|Equestrian Facilities . 18|Keeping of 7 or more dogs (10 ac) X X
25|Storage Parking X 19|Commercial kennels (indoors) X X
26|Museums X 20|Mini-warehouses and storage facilities X
27|Llibrary and cultural services X 71|Outdoor storage =
28|!mprovements to enhance the V&T RR X
o |Picnicking areas 3 22|Open-air markets, flea-markets X
23|permanent outdoor skateboard parks X
1.6 Land Use Compatibility 24[sale, trade, etc. of items outside a permanent building X
. 25|personal dry cleaning X
The proposed Zone Map Amendment is generally 26{Child care (5 or more] X
compatible with the abutting land parcels, existing uses 27| Cemeteries x | x
and abutting land parcels allowed uses. Also, it appears 28[Temporary real-estate offices X
that the proposed Zone Map Amendment will generally | 23[Outdoor discharge of firearms x
impose few to no adverse impacts on the abutting land 30]zo0s x
. . . . . 31 P .
parcels. The majority of the abutting properties in the = Mining.and extraction .
Milli d i iated with mini X
proposed Zone Map Amendment are surrounded by e g e e T8
33|Temporary concrete and asphalt batch plants X
vacant land and vacant BLM land.
34[Bed and breakfast Inns X
Comparison *Tables 2 and 3 show comparisons on 35JArchery clubs X
. . . 36 i i
allowed uses and uses subject to a Special Use Permit = flongregational eStab"Sh’“e“TS | Z
~ . . Possession of one or more wild animals X
(SUP) in the CR and SPR zones. Comparison Table 2 -
Allowed Uses, shows the allowed uses in the CR zone
and the allowed uses in the SPR zone. In the CR zone,
uses such as retail, commercial, multi-family residential and recreational are allowed. In the SPR zone, uses
such as equestrian facilities, storage parking, improvements to enhance the Virginia and Truckee Rail Road
and picnicking areas are allowed.
Comparison Table 3 - Uses Subject to a SUP, shows uses that are allowed subject to securing a SUP in both
the CR and the SPR zones. In the CR zone, uses such as regional stores and shopping centers, automotive
washing and detailing services, casino establishments and mini-warehouses facilities are permitted, subject
to securing a SUP. In the SPR zone, uses such as mining and extraction, milling and processing associated
with mining, temporary concrete and asphalt batch plants and bed and breakfast inns are permitted, subject
to securing a SUP,
*These tables are summarizations from the SCC Title 17 of Allowed Uses and Uses Subject to a SUP for the specified zone. These tables are meant to be used as a reference. For exact
Allowed Uses and Uses Subject to a SUT Staff recommends referring to the SCC Title 17.
=, 0

Staff Report - 2014-005

Background & Analysis




1.7 Special Planning Review Zone Suffix Designations
SCC 17.44.050 Minimum parcel arca and width requirements states:

“The SPR special planing review zone must have a minimum acreage limit. The minimum acreage limit
number is the suffix for the respective zone (e.g., “SPR-5" is an SPR zone with five thousand square feet
minimum parcel area). No SPR zone may allow a parcel to be below five thousand square feet in area.
The area contained within the SPR zoned parcel includes all easements, including easements for access
to an adjacent parcel. SPR zones have the following designated minimum parcel area and minimum
parcel width:

Zone and Suffix Minimum Area Minimum Width
SPR-5 5,000 square feet 50 feet
SPR-6 6,000 square feet 50 feet
SPR-8 8,000 square feet 60 feet
SPR-10 10,000 square feet 60 feet
SPR-15 15,000 square feet 80 feet
SPR-20 20,000 square feet 100 feet

The area of a lot created after the effective date of this title must not be less than the minimum area
required by the zone. Where an existing lot has less area than required and was recorded prior to the date
of the adoption of this title, the lot may be occupied by not more than one residential dwelling.”

Table 4 - SPR Suffix Designations shows the corresponding square footage and suffix designation of
each parcel of land for the proposed Zone Map Amendment.

Table 4 - SPR Suffix Designations
# APN Owner Current Zone Requested Zone *Square Feet Suffix
1 002-122-01 Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR 189,486 SPR-20
2 002-122-02 Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR 146,797 SPR-20
3|  002-142-01 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 63,597 SPR-20
4 002-142-02 Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR 28,750 SPR-20
5 002-142-03 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 64,469 SPR-20
6| 002-141-16 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 441,263 SPR-20
7| 002-141-03 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 39,640 SPR-20
8| 002-151-01 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 79,279 SPR-20
9 002-151-02 Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR 72,309 SPR-20
10|  002-151-03 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 44,867 SPR-20
11 002-151-05 Northern Comstock LLC CR SPR 12,197 SPR-15
12 002-151-06 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 12,197 SPR-15
13 002-151-04 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 72,310 SPR-20
14]  002-161-01 Comstock Mining Inc CR SPR 254,826 SPR-20

*This square footage is based on the Storey County Assessor data and is approximate as most of these parcels have not been surveyed. So the exact square foolage of these
parcels is unknown

intentionally left blank

0

(5,

Staff Report - 2014-005

10

Background & Analysis



2. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH STOREY COUNTY’S
GUIDING DOCUMENTS

2.1 Summary

Table.

*Table 5: Land Use Compatibility, shows existing land uses, Storey County Master Plan (Master
Plan) designations, the existing zones and the proposed zones for the Applicants parcels of land and
abutting parcels of land. There appears to be few to no evident conflicts between the proposed Zone
Map Amendment, the Master Plan and the abutting land use. Table 5 - Land Use Compatibility, shows
general consistency with the abutting land uses and Master Plan designations.

Table 5 - Land Use Compatibility

RVs, Equestrian Facilities, Museums

Land Land Use Master Plan Designation Existing Zone | Proposed Zone
Applicant's Land Generally vacant Retail, Commercial, Recreation, Agricultural, Residential CR SPR
Land to the north Vacant Retail, Commercial, Recreation, Agricultural, Residential CR n/a
Tvi ices, Agricultural, Residential (SF), St Parking for
Land to the northwest Vacant Civic sennces. ngCl.,I! .ura esidential {SF), Storage Parking fo . n/a
RVs, Equestrian Facilities, Museums
ini illi i i ial ism-based |
Land to the west Vacant BLM Mining, milling, commercial, residential and tourism-based land Raresty ol
uses
i i ial (LDR), 1 i i 1to5 : LDR (L
Land to the south Lyon County Lom‘/ Den?lty ReS|dlent.|aI ({LDR), 1 dwelling unit per 1 to 5 acres R (Lyon n/a
typically in rural districts (Lyon County) County)
ining, milling, ercial, residential and tourism-based land
Land to the southeast Vacant BLM ‘l:/ll;lng milling, commerclal, resigentia rism-oa Forestry n/a
Land to the east Pocart Civic services.‘ Agricy!t.ural, Residential (SF}, Storage Parking for SPR n/a
RVs, Equestrian Facilities, Museums
ivi i icul Residenti ) i
Land to the northeast A Civic services, Agricultural, Residential (SF), Storage Parking for SPR n/a

3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY CODE

3.1 SSC Zone map amendments and zone text amendments

SCC Section 17.03.220 Zone map amendments and zone text amendments states:

“1. Before a zoning map amendment may be recommended for approval, the Applicant must
provide evidence to the Board and Planning Commission concerning the physical use of the
land and zoning currently existing in the general vicinity, and which have occurred in the
previous five-year time period, and describe:

a. How the proposal will impact the immediate vicinity.
b. How the proposal supports the goals, objectives and recommendations of the master
plan concerning land use and related policies for the neighborhood where the subject

project is situated.

¢. If the proposed amendment will impact properties within that use district.
d. Any impacts on pubic services and facilities, and availability of water resources.”

3.1.1 How the proposal will impact the immediate vicinity.

The proposed Zone Map Amendment is consistent with abutting zoning and Master Plan

designations. Therefore, the proposed Zone Map Amendment will generally have little to no impact

on the immediate vicinity or abutting properties. Moreover, because the SPR zone does not

*This table is a summarization from the SCC Title 17, SC Master Plan and Lyon County zoning maps. This table is meant to be used as a reference. For exact land uses,
Master Plan Designations, zoning and proposed zoning, Staff recommends referring to the SCC Title 17, SC Master Plan, SC Official Zoning Maps, #2014-005 Develop-

ment Application and the Official Lyon County Zoning Map.

[u}
Staff Report - 2014-005

0

General Compliance with Storey County's Guiding Documents & Compliance with the Storey County Code

11



allow for commercial, retail or multi-family (unlike the CR zone) which are viewed as high
impact uses, it is Staff”s opinion that the proposed Zone Map Amendment may result in less
impact to the area then if the subject properties remain as the existing CR zones.

3.1.2 How the proposal supports the goals, objectives and recommendations of the
masterplan concerning land use and related policies for the neighborhood where the

subject project is situated.

Staff outlines how the proposed application supports the goals, objectives and recommendations
of the Master Plan concerning land use and related policies for the subject neighborhood in

Section 4 (page 14) of this Staff Report.

3.1.3 If the proposed amendment will impact properties within that use district.

The proposed Zone Map Amendment will have little to no negative impact on properties within
the use district because the proposed Zone Map Amendment is consistent with the majority of
the surrounding zones and uses as outlined in Section 2 (page 11) of this Staff Report.

3.1.4 Impacts on pubic services and facilities, and availability of water resources.

The Applicant has stated that the proposed Zone Map Amendment will have few to no impacts
on public services and facilities and availability of water resources. As previously stated,

the surrounding land uses are consistent with the proposed Zone Map Amendment and therefore,
the proposal will have similar impacts on public services and facilities, and availability

of water resources because the allowed land uses will be generally consistent with the existing

uses or allowed uses in the SPR zone,

3.2 SCC Comparison Table on Regulations

Staff created a summary table (Comparison *Table 6
- Regulations) to compare regulations between the CR
and SPR zones.

Staff believes the existing CR zone along the SR 342
corridor would not be an ideal place for the types of
some permitted uses in a CR zone. Permitted uses in
the CR zone such as retail, commercial, multi-family
dwelling, congregational establishments, child care
facilities and public facilities should be located in areas
of in-fill and not necessarily along the subject section of
the SR 342 corridor. For example, incompatible uses,
including high-speed highway travel, are not conducive
to commercial and tourism activity and uses.

As stated SCC 17.30.015 Purpose and intent:

“The commercial-residential zone is intended to
serve as a community focal point and provide for
a center of mixed uses including single-family and
multi-family residences which are integrated with

Comparison Table 6 - Regulations

Regulation

Height

CR - Not to exceed a height of 3 stories or 45'

SPR- Not to exceed a height of 3 stories or 35'

N

Setbhacks

CR - abutting C zone: 0' (F, S); abutting E or R zone: 8'+ (S), 20'+ (F);

R use: 20'+ {F, R), 8'+ {S); for buildings located between Sky Lane

and the Storey/Lyon county boundary, the minimum sethack distance

between the building and State Route 342 is 20", This requirement

applies to all properties abutting State Route 342,

SPR-SPR: 5,6,8,10: 20" {F, R), 8' (S); SPR 15: 30'; (F), 20' (R), &'; (S);

SPR 20: 40'; (F), 20" (R}, 8'; (S)

Minimum parcel area

CR - Not applicable

SPR - between 5K sf to 20k sf

Use density

CR - C Use: area of 2K+ sf; R1 Use: depends on min area; MF Use:

area of 8K+ sf; CR Use: SF/MF 2K+ sf per DU, C 1k+ sf

SPR - Not applicable

Home occupations

CR - SUP requirement

SPR - SUP requirement

Distance between buildings

CR - Not applicable

SPR - 10+ between a R and accessory; 6'+ between accessory buildings

#This table is a summarization from the SCC Title 17 Regulations in the CR and SPR zones. This table is meant to be used as a reference, For exact information Staff

recommends referring to the SCC Title 17.

O

(m

Staff Report - 2014-005

12

Compliance with the Storey County Code




commercial businesses, culture and entertainment amenities, and uses related to tourism...In general,
the zone provides for centers and uses of regional importance and provides an integrated and attractive
environment for visitors and residents.”

Staff believes the subject area is not a good
location for the majority of the purpose and
intent of the CR zone. The subject area is
most likely not a viable location to serve as
a community focal point or for having multi-
family residences.

Moreover, a portion of the area along the SR
342 corridor is located in a 100-year flood plain
making it even less suitable for permitted uses
in a CR zone such as retail, commercial, multi-
family, etc. (Figure 13 - 100 Year Flood Plain)

and more suitable for the purpose and intent Property Boundaries

of the SPR zone which is “intended to provide | s SOuaty Boundary o~

;i = e - 100 - Year Flood Plain e NTS
protections to current mining and milling and : =
the historical remnants within American Flat, Figure 13 - 100 Year Flood Plain

Gold Hill, and Virginia City...It provides for an
environment that remains suitable for current and future mining and milling practices when findings of
fact show no substantial impact to surrounding uses and the community...”

Staff believes the subject area is a good location for the SPR zone because of similar abutting zones to
the subject properties. Also, the SPR zone may allow some uses in a 100-year flood plain, particularly
mining, but these allowed uses must mitigate potential increased flooding caused thereby and as
explained in Section 3.3 Carson River Mercury Superfund Site, of this Staff Report.

3.3 Carson River Mercury Superfund Site

The Carson River Basin, from New Empire to Stillwater and the Carson Sink, was designated a
National Priority Listed (NPL) site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation
and Liability Act (CERCLA or Superfund) in August, 1990. Many areas in Virginia City and Gold

Hill, particularly where mining and milling activities historically took place, have been identified as
potentially containing heavy metal contaminants of concern (CoCs) including mercury, arsenic, and
lead, and are considered to be within the Superfund Site. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
has stated that delineating and mitigating the entire region would be prohibitively expensive and
impracticable. The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) Bureau of Corrective Actions
(the Bureau) - the local agency designated to manage the Superfund Site - informed the Applicants in
2011 that certain areas within the project may contain CoCs and are applicable to the Superfund Site.

Should the Applicants use the proposed subject properties for allowed uses or allowed uses subject to

a SUP in a SPR zone, such as mining and milling, the Applicants will be held responsible for properly
managing disturbances of former and existing mine and mill sites, tailings, dumps, and other areas that
are found to contain CoCs as stated by the Bureau. This will avoid potential risk of exposure issues
because the Applicants will be required to sample and analyze the material for mercury, arsenic and lead
contents as directed by the Bureau.

a o
Staff Report - 2014-005 Compliance with the Storey County Code

13



4. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY MASTER
PLAN

On page 2 of the Master Plan it states:

“Since 90% of county land is in private hands, the potential threat of change is perceived to come from
large scale land subdivisions. This type of development could destroy historic land use patterns, the
unique social and architectural environment of the Virginia City/Gold Hill area, and other values which
residents want to protect.”

SCC 17.30.020 (L; 1-4) states that single-family dwelling units and multi-family dwelling units (such as
low-rise apartment buildings, duplexes, triplexes and fourplexes) are allowed in the CR zone. However,
only single-family dwelling units, in regards to allowed residential uses, are allowed in the SPR zone.
Therefore, with the proposed Zone Map Amendment, Staff believes it will protect the historic land use
patterns because large scale land subdivisions are not an allowed use in a SPR zone. Theretore, the
proposed Zone Map Amendment supports the goals, objectives and recommendations of the Master Plan.

Further the Master Plan also states:

“An important consideration in this Master Plan should be future land use planning in the Virginia City/
Gold Hill areas. In an effort to retain the historic flavor of this area, county officials should adopt distinct
development standards and zoning requirements to allow for land use development that will enhance this
effort.”

Staff believes that the proposed Zone Map Amendment will retain the historic flavor of the Virginia
City and Gold Hill area because of the purpose and intent of the SPR zone. SCC 17.44.010 Purpose and
intent states:

“The SPR Special planning review zone is intended to provide protections to current mining and milling
and the historical remnants within American Flat, Gold Hill, and Virginia City...It provides for an

environment that remains suitable for current and future mining and milling practices when findings of
fact show no substantial impact to surrounding uses and the community...”

Consequently, the proposed Zone Map Amendment allows for land use development that will enhance
efforts to retain the historic flavor of the area and, therefore the proposed Zone Map Amendment
supports the goals, objectives and recommendations of the Master Plan,

5. PUBLIC COMMENT

5.1 Public Comment

As of posting date, June 23, 2014, Staff had received one public commit submittal: an email from D
Long on Wednesday, June 18, 2014. This email is Appendix 3 - Email from D Long, of this Staff Report.

a

o

Staff Report - 2014-005

14

Compliance with the Storey County Master Plan & Public Comment



6. FINDINGS

6.1 Motion for Approval

The following Findings of Fact are evident with regard to the requested Zone Map Amendment when the
recommended conditions of approval in Section 7 - Recommended Conditions of Approval are applied:

6.1.1 The proposed Zone Map Amendment complies with all Federal, Nevada State, and
Storey County regulations;

6.1.2 The proposed Zone Map Amendment will not impose substantial adverse impacts or
safety hazards on the abutting properties;

6.1.3 The conditions of approval of the Zone Map Amendment require compliance with the
applicable codes;

6.1.4 The conditions of approval of the Zone Map Amendment do not conflict with the
minimum requirements in SCC Chapter 17.44 Special Planning Review or Chapter
17.03.220 Zone map amendments and zone text amendments;

6.1.5 The uses allowed by the new zones do not appear to cause substantial adverse impacts to
the uses allowed in abutting zones;

6.1.6 The proposed Zone Map Amendment is in substantial compliance with and supports
the goals, objectives and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan;

6.1.7 The proposed Zone Map Amendment will provide for land uses compatible with
existing adjacent land uses and will not have detrimental impacts to other properties in the
vicinity;

6.1.8 The proposed Zone Map Amendment will not cause uses that will negatively impact
existing or planned public services or facilities and will not adversely impact the public
health, safety and welfare;

6.1.9 The proposed Zone Map Amendment will not create any non-conforming conditions, such
as non-conforming setback distances or minimum parcel area and width requirements.

6.2 Motion for Denial

Should a motion be made to deny the Zone Map Amendment request, the following findings with
explanation of why should be included in that motion.

6.2.1 Substantial evidence shows that the Zone Map Amendment may conflict with the
purpose, intent, and other specific requirements of SCC Chapter 17.30 Commercial-
Residential, 17.44 Special Planning Review or Chapter 17.03.220 Zone Map Amendments and
zone text amendments or other Federal, Nevada State, or Storey County regulations;

6.2.2 The conditions of approval under the Zone Map Amendment do not adequately mitigate

8]

—

Staff Report - 2014-005

Findings



potential adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for
surrounding uses;

6.2.3 No reasonable level of conditions of approval imposed on this Zone Map Amendment
would be sufficient to reasonably mitigate visual, safety or other potential impacts on adjacent
and surrounding residences and land uses;

6.2.4 The proposed Zone Map Amendment is not in substantial compliance with and does not
support the goals, objectives and recommendations of the master plan;

6.2.5 The proposed Zone Map Amendment will not provide for land uses compatible with
existing adjacent land uses and will have detrimental impacts to other properties in the vicinity;

6.2.6 The proposed Zone Map Amendment will negatively impact existing or planned public
services or facilities and will adversely impact the public health, safety and welfare.

7. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless otherwise
stated.

1. Official Storey County Zoning Map. The Official Storey County Zoning Map must be amended to
depict the Zone Map Amendment approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners (the Board)
with the recommendation by the Storey County Planning Commission (the Planning Commission). The
Official Storey County Zoning Map must be identified by the signature of the chairman of the Board
attested by the Storey County Clerk (the Clerk) under the following words:

“This is to certify that this is the Official Zoning Map of Storey County referred to in Section 17.08.040
of the Zoning Ordinance of Storey County, Nevada” together with the date of adoption.

2. Changes Made Promptly. The changes approved by the Board with the recommendation by the
Planning Commission must be entered by the Planning Department on the Official Storey County
Zoning Map (and the applicable Area Zoning Map) promptly after the amendment has been approved
with an entry indicating the ordinance number and date adopted. Regardless of the existence of the
purported copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map and the applicable Area Zoning Map which
may from time to time be made or published, the Official Zoning Storey County Map and the Area
Zoning Maps are to be located in the office of the Clerk and are the final authority as to the currently
zoning status of land and water area, buildings and other structures in the County.

3. Signed and Sealed copies of the Official Storey County Zoning Map. Signed and sealed copies of
the Official Storey County Zoning Map and the Area Zoning Maps must be available in both the Clerk
and the Storey County Recorder’s office.

4. No Other Map Actions. No parcel map, consolidation, or other map action may occur until the
Official Storey County Zoning Map is officially adopted pursuant to SCC 17.08.040.

5. Requirements, The Zone Map Amendment must comply with and remain in compliance with all
provisions set forth by this Zone Map Amendment and all Federal, Nevada State and Storey County
Codes and Regulations.

]

=

Staff Report - 2014-005

16

Findings & Recommended Conditions of Approval



8. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission must take such action thereon as it deems
warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal resolution, and such
resolution must recite the findings of the Planning Commission upon which it bases its decision. The
decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the Zone Map Amendment is advisory
only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing body must consider the report and
recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

9. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two options from which to choose. The motion for approval is recommended by
Staff and the Planning Commission (if a recommendation for approval is made at the June 26, 2014
Planning Commission meeting), in accordance with the Findings under section 6.1 of this Staff Report.
Those Findings of Fact should be made part of that motion. A motion to deny the proposed Zone Map
Amendment may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in section 6.2.
Other findings determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.

9.1 Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, and the Storey County Planning Commission (if a
recommendation for approval is made at the June 26, 2014 Planning Commission meeting), the Findings
of Fact under Section 6.1 of the Staff Report and/or other Findings of Fact deemed appropriate by

the Board, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, the Storey County Board of County
Commissioners hereby approves Zone Map Amendment Number 2014-005.

9.2 Alternative Motion

In accordance with the findings under Section 6.2 of this Staff Report and/or other findings deemed
appropriate by the Board, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners hereby denies Zone Map
Amendment Number 2014-005.

10. FORWARDING TO THE BOARD IF A RECOMMENDATION
OF APPROVAL IS RECOMMENDED

SCC 17.03.220 Zone map amendments and zone text amendments, Section F, Subsection 2 and sub-
subsection a.- c. and Sections G. - H. states:

2. The Planning Commission, in forwarding a recommendation to the Board for
approval of a zoning map amendment or zoning code amendment must make the
following findings of fact.:
a. That the proposed amendment is in substantial compliance with and supports
the goals and polices of the master plan;
b. That the proposed amendment will provide for land uses compatible
with existing adjacent land uses and will not have detrimental impacts to other
properties in the vicinity;

]

(=,

Staff Report - 2014-005 Power of the Board & PC, Proposed Motions & Forwarding to the Board

17



c. That the proposed amendment will not negatively impact existing or planned
public services or facilities and will not adversely impact the public health,
safety and welfare.

G. Planning Commission decision. Following the public hearing, the Planning Commission will
determine if there is adequate evidence in the record to support the facts and findings required by this
section and must recommend to the Board to approve or deny the request for the zoning map amendment
or zoning text amendment.

H. Report to the Board. The Planning Commission must forward to the Board a copy of its decision
and findings recommending approval, modification, or denial of the proposed zoning map amendment or
zoning code amendment.

I. Action by the Board. The Board must consider the evidence relating to the map amendment or

the ordinance containing the proposed zoning text amendment at a hearing noticed and conducted in
accordance with the provisions of this title and State law. The zone text amendment must be adopted by
ordinance and the map amendments must be adopted in accordance with all procedures established in
this code. Following approval of the ordinance or map amendment, the zoning text or the official zoning
map must be changed to reflect the amendment.

Prepared by: Dessie E. Redmond
Storey County Planner

0

o

Staff Report - 2014-005

18

Forwarding to the Board



APPENDIX 1: LETTER AND MAP SUBMITTED BY APPLICANTS

o u}
Appendixes - 2014-005 Appendix 1: Letter and Map Submitted by Applicants

19



Detail Description/Justification of Project

Applicant is requesting zoning change for properties shown on Plate #3 Gold Hill Official Storey County Zoning Map

dated 12/4/2012. Proposed zoning changes are listed in the table below. Anticipated uses subject to Special Use

Permit, for these properties comply with those listed in Storey County Code 17.44 SPR Special Planning Review Zone

including, but not exclusive to 17.44.030 A.

APN

Current Zoning Category

Proposed Zoning Category

002-122-01

Commercial Residential {CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-122-02

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-142-01

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-142-02

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-142-03

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-141-16

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-141-03

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review {SPR)

002-151-01

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-151-05

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review {SPR})

002-151-06

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review {SPR)

002-151-02

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-151-03

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

002-151-04

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review {SPR)

002-161-01

Commercial Residential (CR)

Special Planning Review (SPR)

(m,

Appendixes - 2014-005

20

o]

Appendix 1: Letter and Map Submitted by Applicants



